
 

Members are summoned to attend this meeting 
Kim Wright 
Chief Executive 
Lewisham Town Hall  
Catford 
London SE6 4RU 
Date: Monday, 8 November 2021 

 

 
 

The public are welcome to attend our committee meetings, however occasionally committees may have to consider some 
business in private.  Copies of reports can be made available in additional formats on request. 

 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
BUSINESS PANEL 

 

Date: TUESDAY, 16 NOVEMBER 2021 at 7.05 pm 
 

Virtual – via Microsoft Office Teams & also at the 
Civic Suite, Lewisham Town Hall, London SE6 4RU 

 
Enquiries to:  Jasmine Kassim 
Telephone:    0208 314 8577 (direct line) 
Email:   Jasmine.Kassim@lewisham.gov.uk 
 
MEMBERS 
 

 

Councillor Paul Maslin Chair Labour 
Co-op 

Councillor 
Octavia Holland 

Vice Chair L 

Councillor 
Peter Bernards 

Chair of Housing Select Committee L 

Councillor 
Juliet Campbell 

Chair of Safer and Stronger Communities Select 
Committee 

L 

Councillor 
Louise Krupski 

Chair of Sustainable Development Select Committee Labour 
Co-op 

Councillor Joan Millbank Labour Group Representative L 

Councillor John Muldoon Chair of Healthier Communities Select Committee Labour 
Co-op 

Councillor Luke Sorba Chair Children and Young People Select Committee L 

Councillor Susan Wise Labour Group Representative Labour 
Co-op 

Councillor Mark Ingleby Chair of Public Accounts Select Committee L 
   

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

 

The public are welcome to attend our committee meetings, however occasionally committees may have to 
consider some business in private.  Copies of reports can be made available in additional formats on request. 

 

 

 ORDER OF BUSINESS – PART 1 AGENDA  

 

Item 
No 

 Page 
No.s 

1.   Minutes 
 

1 - 8 

2.   Declarations of Interest 
 

9 - 12 

3.   Key Decision Plan 
 

13 - 26 

4.   Open Session - Decision by Mayor and Cabinet on 3 November 2021 
 

27 - 74 

5.   Scrutiny Update Report 
 

75 - 85 

6.   Exclusion of the Press & Public 
 

86 

7.   Closed Session - Decision by Mayor and Cabinet on 3 November 2021 
 

87 - 92 

   



 

Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel 

 
 

 

1. Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that minutes of those parts of meetings of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Business Panel which were opened to the press and public on  
28 September 2021 and 12 October 2021 be confirmed and signed.  
 
 
 
 
Kim Wright 
Chief Executive, 
Lewisham Town Hall,  
Catford SE6 4RU  
 
8 November 2021 

Outline and recommendations 

Members are asked to consider minutes of that part of the meeting of the Overview 
and Scrutiny Business Panel of 28 September 2021 and 12 October 2021, which 

were opened to the press and public  

Minutes 
 

Date: 16 November 2021 
Key decision: No  
Class: Part 1  
Ward(s) affected: All 

Contributors: Chief Executive / Head of Business and Committee 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



 

 

 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
BUSINESS PANEL 

Tuesday, 28 September 2021 at 7.00 pm 
 
 
 

PRESENT:  Councillors Paul Maslin, Peter Bernards, Juliet Campbell, Joan Millbank, 
John Muldoon and Luke Sorba. 
 
ALSO PRESENT:   
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Octavia Holland, Councillor Louise 
Krupski and Councillor Susan Wise. 
 
 
 
1. Minutes Cover Report 

 
RESOLVED that the Minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel held 
on 20 July 2021, be agreed. 
 

2. Declarations of Interest 
 
No declarations were made by Members. 
 

3. Key Decision Plan 
 
The Head of Committee Business introduced the Key Decision Plan (KDP) report 
to the Panel, and he enquired whether Members had questions to ask in regard to 
forthcoming decisions in to be taken by the Executive.  He stated that requests 
from Members to add an explanatory note to each item on the KDP had been 
taken into account, and that the application would continue.  Members were further 
asked to note that a key decision not in the KDP, which was due to be taken in 
relation to support for African refugees would be added in the next update report to 
the Panel. 
 
RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 

4. Part1 Open Session Decisions by Mayor & Cabinet September 14 
 
Councillor Paul Maslin, Chair of the Panel, informed Members that he had 
received a request from Councillor Luke Sorba to consider a decision taken by the 
Mayor and Cabinet on 14 September 2021 in light of proposals in a report relating 
to “Transforming and Modernising Adult and Social”.  The Chair invited Councillor 
Sorba to address the meeting in that regard, and submissions made were noted. 
 
The Executive Director for Community Services (CS), and the Director of Finance 
(Corporate Services) were present to introduce the report and respond to 
questions. 

Public Document Pack

Page 2



 

 
 
 

2 

 
The Panel noted responses to questions raised by Councillor Sorba as follows: 
 
1. Initial relationship with Newton Europe 

 
The Director for CS clarified that in light of financial cuts proposals, a 
request was made by the Public Accounts Select Committee for the Council 
to review the use of resources, with a view to identify opportunities to 
deliver cashable savings across departments.  It was stated that the aim 
was to enable the Council in its efforts to set yearly balanced budgets.  
Members were advised that in light of that, Community Services department 
undertook a review by initiating a tendering process, and four organisations 
submitted bids.  Thus, the Council’s initial relationship with Newton Europe 
was not because they had recommended themselves for the work, but 
stemmed from the fact that the company won the contract to undertake the 
consultancy, with a view to help modernise adults’ social care provision in 
Lewisham. 
 

2. Credibility of tendering process 
 

Members were advised by the Executive Director for CS that Newton 
Europe had gained credibility in the months they were tasked to conduct a 
diagnostics in Lewisham.  However, the time spent alongside front-line staff 
would not have provided them with an added advantage because the 
officers who made the decision to award the contract were not involved in 
the diagnosis.  It was confirmed that the process applied in awarding the 
contract was on the basis of the Crown Commercial Services Framework.  
Thus, the arrangements were transparent and objective in line with the 
Council’s comprehensive tendering programme. 
 

3. Value for money 
 
a. Financial Savings on Investments 

 
The Executive Director for CS reiterated to Members that the Mayor and 
Cabinet’s decision recognised that £4.5m was a significant amount of 
money.  However, that amount represented less than 4% of the annual 
revenue budget for adults’ social care provision in Lewisham.  Thus, the 
decision to award the contract to Newton Europe, which included the 
diagnostics, was based on an invest-to-save cumulative option of a one-
off cost, with potential annual savings of between £8.5 and £11m over 
the course of four to five years. 

 
The Director of Finance (Corporate Services) echoed statements about 
the return on investments, highlighting to the Panel that the decision to 
award the contract to Newton Europe was a reasonable option in 
financial terms.  He advised the Panel that although there would be a 
challenge in regard to delays in the timing of implementation, for six 
months effectively, the £4.5m outlay of annual savings of between £8m 
and £11m would pay for itself within a year, in addition to structural and 
cultural benefits for local residents. 

Page 3



 

 
 
 

3 

 
b. Other investment considerations 

 
The Executive Director for CS declared an interest as a member of the 
Association of Directors of Adults Social Care (ADASS) in England.  He 
advised Members that the ADASS was supportive of individual directors, 
and in that role, it had been instrumental in putting forward approaches 
to reduce expenditure in adults’ social care, which the Council had 
adopted in recent years, with a view to deliver improvements for the 
benefits of Lewisham residents. 
 
Members were advised by the Executive Director of CS that Newton 
Europe had an added credibility through its involvement in several 
contracts relating to adults’ social care services with central government, 
other local authorities and NHS organisations across the country, and 
most recently, with the Royal Borough of Greenwich.   Thus, awarding 
the contract to Newton Europe would help achieve the development 
investment opportunity needed in Lewisham, given that the workforce 
lacked the skills sets required to manage the capacity and analytics of 
the current review in terms of depth and pace. 
 

In light of a concern by Councillor John Muldoon, the Executive Director expressed 
a view to the Panel that any increase in national insurance contributions as a 
result of the review in adults social care provision would likely be borne by central 
government. 
 
Councillor Juliet Campbell enquired about plans to retain the expertise in light of 
the large sums of money involved in development opportunities for staff.  In 
response, the Executive Director of CS informed the Panel that the Council would 
not restrict staff career progression as a result of the change, but given that the 
Assistant Chief Executive was leading the Project Management Team, there could 
be provision to transfer learning in specifications of future jobs. 
 
RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 

5. OSBP Scrutiny Update 
 
The Head of Overview and Scrutiny introduced the report to the Panel. She stated 
that the second round of Select Committee meetings had taken place. It was 
stated that the scheduled meeting of Sustainable Development Select Committee 
on 10 November 2021 would be moved to later in the year, with the date to be 
agreed, but the one set to take place for 23 November 2021 would be going ahead 
as planned.  The Panel also received confirmation from the Head of Overview and 
Scrutiny that the task and finish groups were progressing well, and that a large 
number of evidence and engagement sessions had taken place, with a view to 
conclude the work in February 2022.  Updates by Councillors Mark Ingleby, Luke 
Sorba, John Muldoon and Peter Bernards about the current and upcoming work 
being carried out their respective Select Committee were noted by the Panel. 
 
RESOLVED that the report be noted. 

Page 4



 

MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
BUSINESS PANEL 

 
Tuesday 12 October 2021 at 7pm 

 
Present: Councillor Maslin (Chair), Councillor Campbell, Councillor Ingleby,   
Councillor Krupski, Councillor Millbank, Councillor Muldoon.  
 
Present remotely: Councillor Bernards, Councillor Wise.  
 
In Attendance remotely: Councillor Dacres 
 
Also Present: Director of Communities, Partnership and Leisure (DCPL), Officers (Housing 
Services). 
 
Apologies: Councillor Holland, Councillor Sorba 
 
 
1. Declarations of Interest  
 
No interests were declared.  
 
2. Minutes  
 
The minutes of the last meeting were deferred to the next scheduled Committee meeting.  
 
3. Key Decision Plan  
 
The Head of Business and Committee presented this item. The report outlined the upcoming 
key decisions over the next few months.  
Councillor Millbank asked if the ‘Lewisham and Lee Green Low Traffic Neighbourhood: 
Consultation report’ would consider just that particular neighbourhood or Low Traffic 
Neighbourhoods in general.  
 
The Head of Business and Committee responded that he would consult with the local 
authority’s transport and highways officer, for further clarification.  
Councillor Krupski confirmed the consultation would specifically address the consultation 
feedback with regard to the Lee Green Low Traffic Neighbourhood. 
 
Councillor Muldoon noted a typo on page 11 of the Key Decision Plan stating that the report 
titled ‘Permission to award principal contractor to carry out refurbishment woks to Lewisham 
Town Hall’ should probably include the word ‘Works’ as opposed to ‘Woks’.  
The Head of Business and Committee acknowledged the typo error and confirmed that 
Councillor Muldoon’s assertion, was correct. 
 
RESOLVED that the report be noted.  
 
4. Decisions made by Mayor and Cabinet - 6 October 2021 in open session 
 
Private Sector Housing - Consultation for introducing selective licensing scheme 
 

Page 5



The Chair advised Members that he had received a request from Councillor Ingleby, for the 
panel to consider a decision made by the Mayor and Cabinet, in regard to the: ‘Borough-
Wide Selective Licensing of the private rented sector – approval to consult’ report.  
 
Councillor Ingleby requested: 
 

1. Clarification whether what was being proposed in the report, fell within Article 4 
directions  

2. Advice on whether the Article 4 directions process, helped or hindered the progress, 
of the proposal 
 

An Officer who represented Housing Services, advised Members the Article 4 directions 
related to individual properties that required planning consent.  
The Officer informed Members the local authority intended to launch a Selective Licensing 
scheme, which would regulate the management of HMO’s. The Officer concluded that the 
Article 4 directions would not impact the proposal, as the proposal did not include the 
development of HMO’s. 
 
Domestic Abuse and Violence against Women and Girls Strategy 2021-26 
 
The Chair informed Members that he had received a request from Councillor Campbell, for 
the panel to consider a decision made by the Mayor and Cabinet, in regard to the: ‘Domestic 
Abuse and Violence against Women and Girls Strategy’ report.  
 
Councillor Campbell enquired: 
  

1. What tangible preventative work would be conducted, to prevent violence against 
women and girls, as well as addressing street violence 

2. What work would the police be involved with in support, as stakeholders of the 
strategy, in partnership with the local authority  

3. How would the local authority convey the impact the strategy had, on preventing 
violence against women and girls. 

 
The Director of Communities, Partnership and Leisure (DCPL), advised Members that the 
strategy placed a huge focus on the prevention of violence, as priority. The DCPL quoted 
from the report with regard to the action plan outlined within, which proposed to raise 
awareness of domestic abuse along with early intervention measures such as: various 
education programs, public facing campaigns and promoting zero tolerance approaches. 
The DCPL assured Members, it is now the local authority’s role to deliver on the action plan 
outlined. The DCPL confirmed that once the proposal had been approved, the strategy’s 
offer would be implemented. The DCPL emphasised that continual scrutiny of the strategy 
would be welcome, as well as guidance from the panel and public, to ensure the action plan 
was delivered. 
 
The DCPL advised that with regard to the police, it was acknowledged whilst their 
contribution to the strategy had not been highlighted, their support was at the core of the 
strategy’s delivery. The DCPL advised Members of police strategies, such as: the multi-
agency risk assessment conference, co-chaired by the police, which was key to dealing with 
very high risk abuse cases. Mention was also given to the various domestic violence and 
other protection orders, referred to in the report managed by the police. The DCPL also 
emphasised the police work conducted, via constant review of domestic violence cases, 
under the initiative ‘Operation Dauntless’.  
 
The DCPL clarified the dashboard methods, as outlined in section 10 of the report that would 
convey how the strategy, had made an impact on the prevention of domestic violence. 

Page 6



Councillor Krupski asked: 
  

1. Why the local authority had such a poor record in the prevention of domestic violence  
2. Had been any research been conducted, to identify what triggered instances of 

abuse i.e. stress. 
3. What could be done in terms of building expertise in professionals, who work with 

abuse cases, to help them identify the early signs of domestic violence, so they can 
assist those affected? 

4. Were there any charities or organisations that helped males affected by domestic 
violence? 

 
The DCPL acknowledged the wide prevalence of domestic abuse cases in the borough and 
advised a huge amount of research was being conducted, to establish the causes.  
Members were advised the local authority was in discussion with the police, to obtain full 
victim profiles for research purposes. The Committee were advised the local authority had 
officers on standby to engage in the research process. 
 
Members were assured that professional training was being addressed, to equip 
professionals to identify abuse and respond appropriately. The DCPL recounted the 
research conducted amongst abuse survivors, which highlighted the importance of 
professional curiosity. 
 
The DCPL acknowledged that domestic abuse appeared to be gender specific. Members 
were advised that the strategy sought to use gender neutral language. It was advised that 
care was taken to neutralise pronouns. The DCPL advised the strategy did recognise and 
expand on the prevalence of male against female domestic abuse. Members were informed 
the strategy addressed this and the need for men to challenge and address misogynist 
behaviours.  
 
Members were advised that the local authority noted the lack of services for male victims of 
domestic abuse and had launched a campaign to address the issue. The DCPL advised of 
the campaigns progress, in terms of referrals received. 
 
Councillor Millbank requested: 
 

1. Clarification, with regard to ‘cross borough work’ referred to on section 6.8 of the 
cover report, page 68 of the strategy. 

2. Assurance that the local authority would recognise White Ribbon Day on the 25 
November 2021. 

3. How can the local authority add its voice to have misogyny recognised as a hate 
crime? 

 
The DCPL advised that with regard to domestic violence, there was more cross borough 
work, than on any other policy area. 
Members were assured White Ribbon Day would be recognised on the 25 November, which 
would be the first of the 16 days of activism, to end violence against women. The DCPL 
discussed the planned launch of the strategy on the 9 November to tie in with White Ribbon 
Day and other events. 
 
Councillor Dacres reiterated the DCPL’s advice with regard to the launch of the strategy and 
events in support of the strategy and White Ribbon Day.  
Councillor Dacres discussed the work carried out to make misogyny a hate crime, such as 
the open letter sent to government signed by over 270 female councillors. The Councillor 
noted the support from councillors for misogyny as a hate crime to be written into law. 

Page 7



Members were assured the work for misogyny to be recognised legally as a crime, would 
continue. 
 
The Chair advised Members that he was aware that following recent tragic events, the 
voices against misogyny were mainly those of women. He advised the importance of men in 
the local authority to acknowledge the need to challenge and address the misogynist 
behaviours of men alongside women, to ensure success in combating misogyny. 
 
RESOLVED that the report be noted.  
 
5. Decisions by the Executive Director of Community Services in open session 
 
No requests were made for the Panel to consider any decisions. 
 
The item was closed. 
 
6. Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 
RESOLVED that the report be noted 
 
7. Part 2 – Closed Session - Decisions by M&C- 6 Oct2021 
 
RESOLVED that the report be noted 
 
8. Part 2 Decisions made by the Executive Directors 
 
The Chair advised Members that he had received a request from Councillor Ingleby, for the 
panel to consider a confidential decision made by the Executive Director for Community 
Services, in regard to the report ‘Permission to Procure Lewisham and Greenwich 
Appropriate Adult Service for Vulnerable Adults’. A question was asked by Councillor Ingleby 
which was fully addressed by Tom Brown, the Executive Director for Community Services. 
 
RESOLVED that the report be noted 
 
 
The meeting ended at 7.48pm 

Page 8



 

 

Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel 

 

1. Summary 

1.1. Members must declare any personal interest they have in any item on the agenda. There 
are three types of personal interest referred to in the Council’s Member Code of 
Conduct: 

(1)  Disclosable pecuniary interests 

(2)  Other registerable interests 

(3)  Non-registerable interests. 

1.2. Further information on these is provided in the body of this report. 

2. Recommendation 

2.1. Members are asked to declare any personal interest they have in any item on the 
agenda. 

Declarations of Interest 

Date: 16 November 2021 

Key decision: No  

Class: Part 1  

Ward(s) affected: All 

Contributors: Chief Executive  

Outline and recommendations 

Members are asked to declare any personal interest they have in any item on the agenda. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 2



  

3. Disclosable pecuniary interests  

3.1 These are defined by regulation as: 

(a) Employment, trade, profession or vocation of a relevant person* for profit or gain 

(b) Sponsorship –payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than by the 
Council) within the 12 months prior to giving notice for inclusion in the register in 
respect of expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member or towards 
your election expenses (including payment or financial benefit  from a Trade 
Union). 

(c) Undischarged contracts between a relevant person* (or a firm in which they are a 
partner or a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the securities of 
which they have a beneficial interest) and the Council for goods, services or works. 

(d)  Beneficial interests in land in the borough. 

(e)  Licence to occupy land in the borough for one month or more. 

(f)   Corporate tenancies – any tenancy, where to the member’s knowledge, the 
Council is landlord and the tenant is a firm in which the relevant person* is a 
partner, a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the securities of which 
they have a beneficial interest.   

(g)   Beneficial interest in securities of a body where: 

(a)  that body to the member’s knowledge has a place of business or land in the 
borough; and  

(b)  either: 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 1/100 of the 
total issued share capital of that body; or 

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant person* 
has a beneficial interest exceeds 1/100 of the total issued share capital of 
that class. 

*A relevant person is the member, their spouse or civil partner, or a person 
with whom they live as spouse or civil partner.  

4. Other registerable interests 

4.1 The Lewisham Member Code of Conduct requires members also to register the following 
interests: 

(a) Membership or position of control or management in a body to which you were 
appointed or nominated by the Council 

(b) Any body exercising functions of a public nature or directed to charitable 
purposes, or whose principal purposes include the influence of public opinion or 
policy, including any political party 

(c) Any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated 
value of at least £25. 

Page 10



  

5. Non registerable interests 

5.1. Occasions may arise when a matter under consideration would or would be likely to 
affect the wellbeing of a member, their family, friend or close associate more than it 
would affect the wellbeing of those in the local area generally, but which is not required 
to be registered in the Register of Members’ Interests (for example a matter concerning 
the closure of a school at which a Member’s child attends).  

6. Declaration and impact of interest on members’ participation 

6.1. Where a member has any registerable interest in a matter and they are present at a 
meeting at which that matter is to be discussed, they must declare the nature of the 
interest at the earliest opportunity and in any event before the matter is considered. The 
declaration will be recorded in the minutes of the meeting. If the matter is a disclosable 
pecuniary interest the member must take not part in consideration of the matter and 
withdraw from the room before it is considered. They must not seek improperly to 
influence the decision in any way. Failure to declare such an interest which has not 
already been entered in the Register of Members’ Interests, or participation where 
such an interest exists, is liable to prosecution and on conviction carries a fine of 
up to £5000  
 

6.2. Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a disclosable pecuniary 
interest they must still declare the nature of the interest to the meeting at the earliest 
opportunity and in any event before the matter is considered, but they may stay in the 
room, participate in consideration of the matter and vote on it unless paragraph 6.3 
below applies. 

6.3. Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a disclosable pecuniary 
interest, the member must consider whether a reasonable member of the public in 
possession of the facts would think that their interest is so significant that it would be 
likely to impair the member’s judgement of the public interest. If so, the member must 
withdraw and take no part in consideration of the matter nor seek to influence the 
outcome improperly. 

6.4. If a non-registerable interest arises which affects the wellbeing of a member, their, 
family, friend or close associate more than it would affect those in the local area 
generally, then the provisions relating to the declarations of interest and withdrawal apply 
as if it were a registerable interest.   

6.5. Decisions relating to declarations of interests are for the member’s personal judgement, 
though in cases of doubt they may wish to seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer. 

7. Sensitive information  

7.1. There are special provisions relating to sensitive interests. These are interests the 
disclosure of which would be likely to expose the member to risk of violence or 
intimidation where the Monitoring Officer has agreed that such interest need not be 
registered. Members with such an interest are referred to the Code and advised to seek 
advice from the Monitoring Officer in advance. 

8.  Exempt categories 

8.1. There are exemptions to these provisions allowing members to participate in decisions 
notwithstanding interests that would otherwise prevent them doing so. These include:- 

(a) Housing – holding a tenancy or lease with the Council unless the matter relates 
to your particular tenancy or lease; (subject to arrears exception) 

(b)  School meals, school transport and travelling expenses; if you are a parent or 

Page 11



  

guardian of a child in full time education, or a school governor unless the matter 
relates particularly to the school your child attends or of which you are a 
governor 

(c)   Statutory sick pay; if you are in receipt 

(d)   Allowances, payment or indemnity for members  

(e)  Ceremonial honours for members 

(f)   Setting Council Tax or precept (subject to arrears exception). 

Page 12



 

Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel 

 
 

 

1. Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that the Business Panel receives and comments on the draft Key 
Decision Plan  

 
 
 
 

Outline and recommendations 

Members are asked to receive a draft copy of the statutory Key Decision Plan with 
an explanatory explanation for items listed. 

Key Decision Plan 
 

Date: 16 November 2021 
Key decision: No  
Class: Part 1  
Ward(s) affected: All 

Contributors: Chief Executive / Head of Business and Committee 

Page 13

Agenda Item 3



 

 

 
  

 
 

  

  
FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY BUSINESS PANEL 

 

 

    
 

Forward Plan November 2021 – January 2022 
 
 
This Plan sets out the key decisions the Council expects to take in forthcoming months. All key decisions should appear in the Plan for at least 28 days before 
consideration by either Mayor & Cabinet or an Executive Director for delegated key decisions. 
 
Comments on this document should be sent to Kevin Flaherty 0208 3149327 or kevin.flaherty@lewisham.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A “key decision”* means an executive decision which is likely to: 
 
(a) result in the Council incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are, significant having regard to the Council’s budget for the service or function to which the 

decision relates; 
 

(b) be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards. 

 
 

P
age 14



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date of Decision 
Decision Maker 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Financial 
Implications 
(Capital, Revenue 
or none) 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Summary of Report 

 

     

16/11/21 
Executive Director for 
Community Services 
 
 

Refurbishment works at 
Lewisham Library. 
 

 Adam Platts, Project 
Manager and Councillor 
Andre Bourne, Cabinet 
Member for Culture 

A report seeking approval to  go out to tender for 
refurbishment works at Lewisham Library.  We will 
invite tenders for  2 options. 
 

16/11/21 
Executive Director for 
Community Services 
 

Extension of New Hope Mental 
Health Supported Housing 
Project 
 

 
 

Polly Pascoe, Integrated 
Commissioning Manager 
and Councillor Chris 
Best, Cabinet Member for 
Health and Adult Social 
Care 

The New Hope Supported Housing project is a 12 
bedded property that has been a long standing 
component of the borough’s approach to supporting 
individuals that have complex needs related to their 
mental health and/or offending histories returning to 
the community from detention in inpatient care and 
in most instances as requirement of a Community 
Treatment Order. Mayor and Cabinet are 
recommended to give approval for the extension of 
the current contract with Penrose (Social Interest 
Group) for the delivery of the New Hope Mental 
Health Supported Housing Project for the period of 
1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023  
 

16/11/21 
Executive Director for 
Children & Young 
People 
 

Instrument of Government 
Sydenham School 

 Saaed Suhaib,and 
Councillor Chris 
Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for Childrens 
Services and School 
Performance 

The governing board of Sydenham School have 
resolved to amend their Instrument of Government 
and have asked the Local Authority to make a 
variation to it.The purpose of this report is to seek 
agreement to vary the Instrument of Government 
for The Governing Body of Sydenham School. 
It is proposed to increase the number of co-opted 
governors from 6 to 7. At the governing body 
meeting on 9 June 2021 the governing body of 
Sydenham School resolved unanimously to 
increase the number of co-opted governors from 6 
to 7 and thus amend the Instrument of Government 
previously agreed in November 2018. 
The Governing Body of Sydenham School was 
larger previously and the school struggled to fill 

P
age 15



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date of Decision 
Decision Maker 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Financial 
Implications 
(Capital, Revenue 
or none) 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Summary of Report 

 

some of the Governor positions. With a full 
complement of Governors now, there is a need to 
increase the Governing Body by one co-opted 
Governor. This would allow for even distribution 
over committees and to aid in co-opting a governor 
to aid in adding diversity to the governing body 

16/11/21 
Executive Director for 
Community Services 

Contract award report for 
Services to support the Whole 
Systems Approach to Obesity 
in Lewisham 

 Laura Harper Public 
Health Commissioning 
Manager and Councillor 
Chris Best, Cabinet 
Member for Health and 
Adult Social Care 

The report sets out the proposal to award two 
contracts which support the Whole Systems 
Approach to Obesity. The contracts are:  Food 
Partnership and Network coordination and support, 
which will run from April 2022 to March 2025 with 
an optional extension of up to two years, and; 
Healthy Walks and Physical Activity Community 
Support Service which will run from April 2022 to 
March 2025 with an optional extension of up to two 
years. 

24/11/21 
Council 
 

Statement of Council Accounts 
2020-21 

 
 

Kathy Freeman, 
Executive Director for 
Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Amanda De 
Ryk, Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Resources 

To present to Council the External Auditor’s (Grant 
Thornton) reports (Audit Findings and Value for 
Money) on the audit of the Council’s 2020/21 Main 
accounts (including Group accounts) and Pension 
Fund accounts and to obtain Members’ approval of 
the Statement of Accounts for 2020/21 (including 
the Annual Governance Statement). 

24/11/21 
Council 
 

Protocol for Aldermanic 
Appointments 

 
 

Kevin Flaherty, Head of 
Committee Services and 
Councillor Brenda 
Dacres, Deputy Mayor. 

To agree a protocol for use by the Council when 
considering nominations of former Councillors and 
Mayors to honorary aldermanic positions 

24/11/21 
Council 
 

Scheme of Polling Stations for 
2022 Elections 

 Jamie Baker, Head of 
Electoral Services and 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia, 
Cabinet Member for 
Democracy, Refugees 
and Accountability 

Lewisham will have new wards that come into 
effect in May 2022. Lewisham must implement a 
new polling scheme in December which will be 
used at the elections in May 2022 to elect new 
members for all 19 of the new wards. The 
constitution and electoral regulations require the 
new polling scheme to be approved by Full 
Council. 

P
age 16



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date of Decision 
Decision Maker 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Financial 
Implications 
(Capital, Revenue 
or none) 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Summary of Report 

 

24/11/21 
Council 
 

CRPL – Appointment of 
Directors 

 Kplom Lotsu, SGM 
Capital Programmes and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing and Planning 

Consideration of a Mayor & Cabinet 
recommendation on the appointment of two 
directors 

24/11/21 
Council 
 

Young Mayor Election  Kevin Flaherty, Head of 
Committee Services and 
Councillor Chris 
Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for Children’s 
Services and School 
Performance 

Reporting the outcome of the October 2021 
election, setting out the code of conduct and 
notifying details of the handover. 

08/12/2021 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Compulsory Purchase Order 
application for 2 – 30A 
Reginald Road 

 James Ringwood, 
Housing Delivery 
Manager and Councillor 
Paul Bell, Cabinet 
Member for Housing & 
Planning 

The report is to seek permission to apply for a 
Compulsory Purchase Order for 2-30a Reginald 
Road 

08/12/21 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Lewisham and Lee Green Low 
Traffic Neighbourhood:  
Consultation report and next 
steps 

 Louise McBride, Head of 
Highways and Transport 
and Councillor Patrick 
Codd, Cabinet Member 
for Environment & 
Transport 

This report provides the results of the review of the 
Lewisham and Lee Green Low Traffic 
Neighbourhood (LTN), including the results of the 
public consultation.  It gives recommendations in 
relation to the future of the scheme, having taken 
into account the Council’s duties and 
responsibilities. 

08/12/21 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Textiles contract award  Luke Ellis, Support and 
Engagement Officer 
Strategic Waste and 
Environment and 
Councillor Patrick Codd, 
Cabinet Member for 
Environment & Transport 

This report outlines the process that has been 
followed to procure a new concession contract for 
the textiles collection bring bank service. The 
contract consists of a consortium of 6 inner-London 
boroughs, including Lewisham.  
 

P
age 17



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date of Decision 
Decision Maker 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Financial 
Implications 
(Capital, Revenue 
or none) 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Summary of Report 

 

08/12/21 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Financial Monitoring 2021-22  David Austin and 
Councillor Amanda De 
Ryk, Cabinet Member for 
Finance & Resources 

The quarterly financial monitoring report 

08/12/21 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Award of Contract for Day 
Services for Older Adults 

 Heather Hughes, Joint 
Commissioning Lead 
Complex Care and 
Councillor Chris Best, 
Cabinet Member for 
Health and Adult Social 
Care  

This report seeks approval to award a contract for 
day services for 30 older adults a day and to 
support the wider use of the Calabash Centre 
building by other groups in Lewisham to deliver the 
Council’s wider health, social care, and community 
services agendas. 
 

08/12/21 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Award of the School Minor 
Works Programme Consultant 
Contract 

 Lemuel Dickie-Johnson 
Project Manager 
Capital Programme 
Delivery and Councillor 
Chris Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for Children’s 
Services & School 
Performance 
 

To facilitate Improvement works to school buildings 

08/12/21 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

London Borough of Lewisham 
Waste Strategy. 

 Wendy Nicholas, 
Strategic Waste & 
Environment Manager, 
and Councillor Pat Codd, 
Cabinet Member for 
Environment and 
Transport 

 

The report will provide the headline findings from 
the public consultation that was carried out during 
July- October and present the waste strategy 2022-
2032. The waste strategy details how we plan to 
improve services, deal with challenges to reduce 
the impact of waste and make Lewisham a place 
people are proud of and love to live and work 

08/12/21 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Annual Complaints Report  Lew McKenzie, 
Complaints, Casework & 
Contracts Manager and 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia, 
Cabinet Member for 

The purpose of this report is to set out complaints 
and casework performance in 2020/21 as well as 
the improvement measures being put in place to 
improve complaint handling, performance and 

P
age 18



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date of Decision 
Decision Maker 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Financial 
Implications 
(Capital, Revenue 
or none) 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Summary of Report 

 

Democracy, Refugees 
and Accountability 

service delivery. Appendices relating to Lewisham 
Homes will be attached 

8/12/21,  
Mayor & Cabinet 

Contract award for Young 
People’s Substance Misuse 
and Sexual Health Service 

 Emily Newell, 
Commissioner – 0-19 
Health and Maternity and 
Councillor Chris Best, 
Cabinet Member for 
Health and Adult Social 
Care 

This report seeks approval to award a new contract 
for a Substance Misuse and Sexual Health Service 
for Lewisham young people aged 10-25.  
The service will increase access to information, 
advice and support around substance misuse and 
sexual and reproductive health and relationships, 
and reduce the harm associated with drug and 
alcohol use and risky sexual behaviour. 
The contract award follows a competitive tendering 
process. The new contract will be awarded to the 
successful provider to commence on the 1st April 
2022 and run for three years, an option to extend 
for 1 + 1 years following this.  
 

8/12/21,  
Mayor & Cabinet 

Response to Comments of the 
Sustainable Development 
select Committee on emission 
based short stay parking and 
motorcycle parking 

 Seamus Adams, Head of 
Commercial Operations 
and Councillor Patrick 
Codd, Cabinet Member 
for Environment and 
Transport 

A response to a previous referral made by the 
Sustainable Development Select Committee 

8/12/21,  
Mayor & Cabinet 

Strategy for Adults with a 
Learning Disability 

 Andrea Benson 
Programme Improvement 
Manager and Councillor 
Chris Best, Cabinet 
Member for Health and 
Adult Social Care 

The report outlines our approach to modernising 
Learning Disability Day Opportunities following a 
review of current day centre provisions. The aim of 
the report is to gain commitment from the Council 
to enhance the opportunities available so there is 
more choice available for people living with a 
learning disability or transitioning from the Children 
with Disabilities team to adulthood. It recognises 
that some people need a building based provision 
and the need for a wider scope of choice to be 

P
age 19



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date of Decision 
Decision Maker 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Financial 
Implications 
(Capital, Revenue 
or none) 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Summary of Report 

 

made available.  This will include employment 
pathways, access to community services for 
wellbeing support and learning and development to 
build life skills and promote independence. The 
approach has been informed by initial engagement 
sessions with service users, carers, staff and wider 
stakeholders and the intention is to continue with a 
co-production approach. 
 

14/12/21 
Executive Director for 
Community Services 
 

Broadway Theatre Principle 
Contractor award contract 
 

 Petra Marshall,  
Community Resources 
Manager and Councillor 
Andre Bourne, Cabinet 
Member for Culture 
 

A report asking for ED approval to award a contract 
for the Principle Contractor for Broadway Theatre 
works. 

14/12/21 
Executive Director for 
Corporate Resources 
 

Laurence House 1st - 4th floor 
works for 'Future Working' 
contract award 

 Petra Marshall Senior 
Programme Manager  
Capital Programme 
Delivery Team and 
Councillor Amanda De 
Ryk, Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Resources 

This report seeks the permission of the Executive 
Director for Corporate Services to waive the normal 
contract procedure rules to appoint FSL Group 
(part of Maris Interiors LLP) to deliver works to 
floors 1-4 in Laurence House as part of the Future 
Working programme. Maris previously delivered 
the refurbishment works for the 1st to 5th floor in 
2018-19 and the adaptations to 5th floor for 
Lewisham Homes in 2020, and have quick access 
to the same materials to ensure a cohesive 
adaptation to take place. In addition they provided 
a quality and efficient service and can therefore 
deliver these adaptations quickly as required by the 
programme 

12/01/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 
 

Ladywell S105 Consultation 
and budget approval 
 

 Angela Bryan, Strategic 
Development Officer and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing & Planning 

The S105 consultation, approval for budget and 
extension of the red line for the Ladywell re-
development (ex-Ladywell Leisure Centre site). 

P
age 20



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date of Decision 
Decision Maker 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Financial 
Implications 
(Capital, Revenue 
or none) 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Summary of Report 

 

12/01/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 
 

Mayow Road Supported Living 
Service Parts 1 & 2 
 

 Tom Brown, Executive 
Director for Community 
Services and Councillor 
Chris Best, Cabinet 
Member for Health and 
Adult Social Care 

This report seeks approval from Mayor & Cabinet 
to award the contract to deliver care and support 
services to 6 individuals at a new service at Mayow 
Road, Sydenham. The award follows a competitive 
tendering exercise using the Learning Disability 
Framework. The service is targeted at some of the 
most complex young people who are at risk of 
admission to hospital because of their behaviour. 
They may currently be living at home where 
families are struggling or living in residential 
schools or high cost placements out of borough. 
This award represents an important new service in 
the borough and is a key strand in the work of the 
Council to support the most complex of people to 
have their own homes as part of the Learning 
Disability and/or autism Transformation 
Programme. 

12/01/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Mountsfield Park Café (design, 
build and operate) award for a 
new café at Mountsfield Park. 
 

 Vince Buchanan, Green 
Spaces Contracts 
Manager and Councillor 
Pat Codd, Cabinet 
Member for Environment 
and Transport 

Approval for the tender (design, build and operate) 
award for a new café at Mountsfield Park  

12/01/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Council Tax Base 
 

 Katharine Nidd, Strategic 
Procurement and 
Commercial Services 
Manager and Councillor 
Amanda De Ryk, Cabinet 
Member for Finance and 
Resources 

Statutory consideration and agreement of a Council 
Tax Base prior to the Council Budget being agreed. 

12/01/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Endorsement of the A21 
Framework 
 

 David Syme and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing & Planning 

To seek endorsement of the A21 Framework. 
The Framework document will provide a vison and 
guidance for development opportunities and public 
realm improvements along the A21 corridor. 
 

P
age 21



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date of Decision 
Decision Maker 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Financial 
Implications 
(Capital, Revenue 
or none) 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Summary of Report 

 

12/01/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

The Libraries Consortium - 
Courier Service Framework 
Agreement Contract Award 

 Veronica Hyatt, Service 
Development Manager 
and Councillor Andre 
Bourne, Cabinet Member 
for Culture 

The existing Libraries Consortium Courier Service 
Framework agreement is due to expiries on 31 
March 2022. The courier services –enables stock 
to be moved within individual authorities and 
across The Libraries Consortium (TLC) authorities, 
enabling customers to easily access and request 
catalogued materials from across the 
Consortium.  The  new Framework agreement will 
commence from 1 April 2022 for an initial period of 
24 months, with permission to extend for a further 3 
years (5 years in total) .   

12/01/22 Lewisham Air Quality Action 
Plan 2022–2027 

 Dr Eliane Foteu 
Environmental Protection 
Manager and Councillor 
Patrick Codd, Cabinet 
Member for Environment 
and Transport 

 

Like all English Local authorities, Lewisham is 
required to have an Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP) 
as part of the Council’s duty to manage local air 
quality. The AQAP sets out the commitment and 
actions Lewisham will take to improve air quality 
between 2022 and 2027.  

Schedule 11 of the Environment Act 1995 requires 
Local Authorities to consult on their AQAP with a 
range of persons and organisations.   

P
age 22



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date of Decision 
Decision Maker 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Financial 
Implications 
(Capital, Revenue 
or none) 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Summary of Report 

 

It was agreed on the August 2021 by Cabinet that 
the draft AQAP could go for public consultation, 
which has now taken place (between Wednesday 1 
September to Tuesday 5 2021)  

 

12/01/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

New Cross Road Acquisition  James Ringwood, 
Housing Delivery 
Manager and Cllr Paul 
Bell, Cabinet Member for 
Housing and Planning 

AWAITED 

12/01/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Capital Strategy 2022-23  Kathy Freeman, 
Executive Director for 
Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Amanda De 
Ryk, Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Resources 

AWAITED 

12/01/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

HRA Budget 2022-23  Kathy Freeman, 
Executive Director for 
Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Amanda De 
Ryk, Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Resources 

AWAITED 

02/02/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Main Grants Programme 2022-
25 recommendations for 
funding 
 

 James Lee, Director of 
Communities, 
Partnerships and Leisure 
and Councillor Kim 
Powell, Cabinet member 
for Business & 
Community Wealth 
Building 

To get agreement on the organisations 
recommended for funding in the next round of the 
main grants programme 

02/02/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 

Treasury Management Strategy 
2022-23 

 Kathy Freeman, 
Executive Director for 

To seek approval for the Treasury Management 
Strategy for 2022/23, which will include: agreeing 

P
age 23



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date of Decision 
Decision Maker 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Financial 
Implications 
(Capital, Revenue 
or none) 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Summary of Report 

 

 Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Amanda De 
Ryk, Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Resources 

the prudential and treasury indicators, the Annual 
Investment Strategy and Creditworthiness Policy, 
the Minimum Revenue Provision Policy, and the 
overall credit and counterparty risk management 
criteria. 

02/02/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Budget Cuts  Kathy Freeman, 
Executive Director for 
Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Amanda De 
Ryk, Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Resources 

To seek approval for the budget reductions 
necessary for 2022/23 to ensure that the Council 
can set a balanced budget. 

02/02/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Housing Revenue Account 
Business Plan 
 

The value of our 
housing stock is 
around £1.4billion 
and our Major 
Repairs Reserve is 
£31.9million 

Dawn Eckersley, Head of 
Housing Partnerships 
and Service Improvement 
and Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing and Planning 

The HRA Business Plan is being prepared by an 
external Consultant (Adrian Waite) and will be 
presented to Members for approval. 

09/02/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Council Budget 2022-23 
 

 Kathy Freeman, 
Executive Director for 
Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Amanda De 
Ryk, Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Resources 

To seek approval for the Council’s 2022/23 budget. 

02/03/22 
Council 
 
 

Council Budget 2022-23 
 

 Kathy Freeman, 
Executive Director for 
Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Amanda De 
Ryk, Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Resources 

To seek approval for the Council’s 2022/23 budget. 

09/03/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Location Priority Policy & 
Procurement Strategy 

 Michael Moncrieff, Data & 
Housing Policy Analyst 
and Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing and Planning. 

Requesting approval for a decision on the way in 
which the council determines which households are 
prioritised for temporary accommodation based on 
their need and the area of the property. This report 

P
age 24



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date of Decision 
Decision Maker 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Financial 
Implications 
(Capital, Revenue 
or none) 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Summary of Report 

 

will also contain a procurement strategy which will 
outline how the council intends to meet that need 

09/03/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Learning Disabilities 
Framework - Award of 
Contracts (& related contract 
extensions) for LDF2 

 Joanne Lee, Joint 
Commissioner and 
Councillor Chris Best, 
Cabinet Member Health 
and Adult Social Care 

This report seeks approval from Mayor & Cabinet 
to award contracts for 7 supported living services 
and 3 registered residential care services. 
And, approval of related contract extensions. 

09/03/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Climate Emergency Action 
Plan update 

 Martin O’Brien, Climate 
Resilience Manager and 
Councillor Patrick Codd, 
Cabinet Member for 
Environment and 
Transport 

Lewisham Council declared a Climate Emergency 
in 2019, which set the ambition for the borough to 
be carbon neutral by 2030. This report will provide 
an update on progress delivering on the Climate 
Emergency Action Plan approved by Mayor and 
Cabinet in March 2020 and set out the key 
priorities and opportunities for the following 12 
months. 

09/03/22 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Approval of Flood Risk 
Management Strategy 2022-27 

 Martin O’Brien, Climate 
Resilience Manager and 
Councillor Patrick Codd, 
Cabinet Member for 
Environment and 
Transport 

The Flood and Water Management Act 2010 
places powers and duties on local authorities in 
respect of local flood risk, including publishing and 
maintaining a Local Flood Risk Management 
Strategy.  Lewisham’s current Flood Risk Strategy 
was published in 2016 and an updated strategy is 
needed to reflect new national strategies and 
programmes as well as local priorities and 
opportunities. The draft strategy is currently being 
consulted on. 

09/03/22 ( 
Mayor and Cabinet 

Future Homecare 
Arrangements (New Model and 
Procurement Process) 

 Corinne Moocarme, Joint 
Commissioning Lead, 
Community Support and 
Care, Community 
Services, and Councillor 
Chris Best, Cabinet 
Member for Health and 
Adult Social Care 

On 11th March 2020 Mayor and Cabinet 
considered a report entitled Future Home Care 
Arrangements.  At this meeting Cabinet agreed to 
approve the procurement of Lead Neighbourhood 
Providers (Home Care) subject to a further report 
being brought back to Mayor and Cabient detailing 
the new model for home care and setting out the 
full procurement process for approval. 
 

P
age 25



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date of Decision 
Decision Maker 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Financial 
Implications 
(Capital, Revenue 
or none) 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Summary of Report 

 

Due to the pandemic it was not possible to conduct 
the widespread engagement with all stakeholders 
(including healthcare partners) during 2020.  This 
will recommence in late 2021/early 2022 and will 
inform a new Service Specification for Home Care 
in the Borough.  This Service Specification will form 
the main part of the report. 
 

P
age 26



 

Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel 

 
 
 
1. Recommendation 

 
To consider decisions taken by the Mayor and Cabinet on 3 November 2021, 
which will come in to force on 17 November 2021, unless called in by the Overview 
& Scrutiny Business Panel on 16 November 2021. 
 

2. Background 
 

2.1 The Mayor and Cabinet considered the following decision on 3 November 2021: 
 

i. Endorsement of the Lewisham Biodiversity Partnership’s - A Natural 
Renaissance for Lewisham (2021-26) 

ii. Neighbourhood Community Infrastructure Levy (NCIL) – Boroughwide 
recommendations for funding 

iii. Leisure Management Arrangements 
iv. GLA Homes for Londoners Affordable Housing Programme 2021-26 Bid 

Outcome  
v. Buyback programme 
vi. Supported Accommodation & Floating Support Services – Permission to 

Award 
vii. Award of Contract Drug and Alcohol Services (Core Contract) 
viii. Shared Ownership: Approval to Market, Sell and Manage 
ix. Building Security & Related Services 
x. Catford Regeneration Programme – Approval to Tender works to refurbish 

the former Catford Constitutional Club 
xi. Procurement of a replacement Housing Management System and 

implementation of a Customer Relationship Management System   

Outline and recommendations 

Members are asked to consider decisions taken at a meeting of the Mayor and 
Cabinet held on 3 November 2021 in open session 

Decisions made by Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Date: 16 November 2021 
Key decision: Yes 
Class: Part 1  
Ward(s) affected: All 

Contributors: Chief Executive / Head of Committees 

Page 27

Agenda Item 4



xii. Consultation Results and Feedback on Proposed New Parking 
Arrangements on Housing Estate Land 

 
2.2 The notice of the decision in respect of this report is attached below. 
 
2.3 Under the provisions of Standing Orders Part IV E 14, Members may call in an 

executive decision within 7 days.  If this report is not called in, the decisions will 
come into force on 17 November 2021. 

 
 

 

Page 28



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Mayor & Cabinet made the following decisions on November 3 2021. All 
recommendations shown were agreed by a 5-0 or 6-0 vote of voting members in 
physical attendance. 
 
The decisions will become effective on November 17 2021 unless called in by the 
Overview & Scrutiny Business Panel on November 16 2021. 
 
 
1. Endorsement of the Lewisham Biodiversity Partnership’s - A Natural 

Renaissance for Lewisham (2021-26) 
 

Having considered an open officer report, and a presentation by the Cabinet 
Member for Environment and Transport, Councillor Patrick Codd, the Mayor 
and Cabinet agreed that: the  ‘A Natural Renaissance for Lewisham’ document 

be endorsed and the strategic aspirations of the Lewisham Biodiversity Partnership 
as a formal step in demonstrating due regard to the purpose of conserving 
biodiversity. 

 
2. Neighbourhood Community Infrastructure Levy (NCIL) 

Boroughwide recommendations for funding 
 

Having considered an open and a confidential officer report, and a 
presentation by the Cabinet Member for Business and Community Wealth 
Building, Councillor Kim Powell, the Mayor and Cabinet agreed that the 
allocation of NCIL Borough Wide funding to the list of recommended 
projects found in section 8 be approved. 

 
3. Leisure Management Arrangements 
 

Having considered an open officer report, and a presentation by the Cabinet 
Member for Culture, Councillor Andre Bourne, the Mayor and Cabinet 
agreed that 
 
(1) the progress made since the report to Mayor and Cabinet of 13th 
January 2021 be noted; 
 
(2) the commissioning of a detailed feasibility study to explore the delivery of 
a new leisure centre in the south of the borough be approved; and 

NOTICE OF DECISIONS MADE BY 
THE CABINET  

 

 

Page 29



 
(3) The Bridge Leisure Centre remains closed while the feasibility study is 
undertaken. 
 

4. GLA Homes for Londoners Affordable Housing Programme 2021-26 
Bid Outcome  

 
Having considered an open officer report, and a presentation by the Mayor, 
the Mayor and Cabinet agreed that: 

 
(1) the acceptance by the Council of £69.945 million in grant funding from 
the GLA through the AHP 2021-26 be approved;  

 
(2) authority be delegated to the Executive Director for Housing, 
Regeneration and Public Realm in consultation with the Executive Director 
for Corporate Resources and Director of Law, Governance and Elections to 
approve the terms of and to enter into the grant agreement for the AHP 
2021-26 programme funding;  

 
(3) authority be delegated to the Director for Inclusive Regeneration to 
substitute, amend and reconfigure the schemes within the AHP 2021-2026 
programme, subject to remaining within the financial parameters of the AHP 
2021-26; 

 
(4) authority be delegated to the Director for Inclusive Regeneration to 
authorise the submission of a further bid through the Continuous Market 
Engagement (CME) process for the AHP 2021-26 for a minimum of a further 
58 social rented homes, subject to the said bid being within the Building for 
Lewisham agreed financial hurdles and parameters;  

 
(5) £550,000 of S106 funds be allocated to the Achilles Street Regeneration 
Project; and 

 
(6) all schemes referenced shall come forward to subsequent Mayor and 
Cabinet meetings for their necessary approvals as the projects progress. 

 
5.  Buyback programme 
 

Having considered an open and a confidential officer report, and a 
presentation by the Mayor, the Mayor and Cabinet agreed that: 
 
(1) the purchase of up to 100 homes to let as London Affordable Rented 
homes be approved utilising right to buy receipts and Housing Revenue 
Account borrowing and to note that if GLA Right to Buyback grant is secured 
this will replace the use of Right to Buy receipts; 

(2) the purchase of up to 20 four bed homes for the Afghan Refugee 
programme be approved utilising GLA Right to Buyback grant and General 
Fund Borrowing, subject to securing GLA grant and the costs being 
contained within the programme budget;  

Page 30



(3) authority be delegated to the Director of Inclusive Regeneration to 
approve the purchase of individual properties, and associated 
administrative, refurbishment or alteration/extension works costs for the 
Buyback Programme subject to the costs being contained within the 
programme budget;  

(4) authority be delegated to the Executive Director for Housing, 
Regeneration & Public Realm in consultation with the Executive Director for 
Corporate Resources and Director of Law, Governance and Elections to bid 
for and accept any local, regional or national financial grants to support the 
delivery of the Buyback Programme;  

(5) all properties acquired under the Buyback Programme will be added to 
and managed by Lewisham Homes under the existing Management 
Agreement; 

(6) a stated budget from Housing Revenue Account (HRA) borrowing to 
match fund Right to Buy (RtB) receipts of up to a stated sum be approved 
for the 100 home buyback programme. The use of HRA borrowing and/or 
RtB Receipts will reduce if GLA grant is awarded to support this Buyback 
Programme; and 

(7) a stated budget of General Fund borrowing for the 20 home Afghan 
Refugee buyback programme be approved match funding GLA grant. If the 
GLA grant is not awarded, for this element of the programme, the 20 larger 
homes for families from Afghanistan, will be omitted from the programme 
due to prohibitive financial viability. 

 
6. Supported Accommodation & Floating Support Services – Permission 

to Award 
 

Having considered an open and a confidential officer report, and a 
presentation by the Cabinet Member for Health & Adult Social Care, 
Councillor Chris Best, the Mayor and Cabinet agreed: 
 
(1) to award a contract to Hestia to deliver a male only high needs mental 
health supported housing service. The contract will be for an initial period of 
3 years, commencing on 1st April 2022, with an option to extend for up to a 
further 2 years up to a maximum contract value of £2,097,035 - £419,407 
pa. 

(2) to award a contract to Single Homeless Project to deliver a Young 
Persons Assessment Centre and Next Steps Care Leaver Service for an 
initial period of 4 years, commencing on 1st April 2022 with an option to 
extend for up to a further 2 years up to a maximum contract value of 
£2,124,683 - £354,113 pa. 

(3) to award a contact to Single Homeless Project to deliver a Single Adults 
Community Recovery & Re-integration service for an initial period of 4 years 
, commencing on 1st April 2022, with option to extend for up to a further 2 
years up to a maximum contract value of £2,329,560 - £388,260 pa. 

(4) to award a contract to Thames Reach to deliver a Tenancy Sustainment 
& Resettlement service for singles for an initial period of 3 years, 

Page 31



commencing on 1st April 2022 with an option to extend for up to a further 2 
years up to a maximum contract value of  £1,399,468 - £279,866 pa. 

(5) direct negotiations be entered into with a supplier following a failed 
tender exercise for a Mental Health Community Recovery service. 

(6) award of this contract be delegated to the Executive Director for 
Community Services once direct negotiations have concluded on the advice 
of the Director of Law, Corporate Governance and Elections. 

 

7. Award of Contract Drug and Alcohol Services (Core Contract) 
 

Having considered an open and a confidential officer report, and a 
presentation by the Cabinet Member for Health & Adult Social Care, 
Councillor Chris Best, the Mayor and Cabinet agreed that: 
 

(1) Change, Grow, Live be appointed to deliver the Core Contract Service 
for Adults with Alcohol and Substance Misuse for an initial period of 3 years, 
commencing on 1st April 2022, with an option to extend for a further 1 + 1 
years at an annual contract value of £2,281,700 up to a maximum contract 
value of £11,408,500 over a full 5 year period; and  

(2) the current 2021-22 contract value is £2,429,208, fully funded from a 
combination of main Public Health Grant, the Mayor’s Office for Policing and 
Crime (MOPAC) grant via the London Crime Prevention Fund, Rough 
Sleeping Drug & Alcohol Treatment Grant via Public Health England and 
Section 31 Grant for additional drug treatment, crime and harm reduction 
activity via Public Health England with there being no contribution from the 
Council’s General Fund budgets. 

 

8. Shared Ownership: Approval to Market, Sell and Manage 
 

Having considered an open officer report, and a presentation by the Mayor, 
the Mayor and Cabinet agreed that: 
 
(1) Lewisham Council become a provider of Shared Ownership homes 
within the London Borough of Lewisham. 

(2) the proposed Shared Ownership Policy set out at Section 5 be approved; 

(3) the process of marketing, sale and management of Shared Ownership 

homes to facilitate existing programmes through Lewisham Homes be 
approved; 

(4) authority be delegated to the Executive Director for Housing, 
Regeneration and Public Realm in consultation with the Director of Legal, 
Corporate Governance and Elections, to agree a variation to the Council’s 
Management Agreement with Lewisham Homes to appoint Lewisham 
Homes as the Council’s sales and marketing agent for all the Council’s 
Shared Ownership homes and to provide all necessary management 
services in this respect; 

Page 32



(5) authority be delegated to the Director of Inclusive Regeneration, in 
consultation with the Director of Law, Corporate Governance & Elections, 
authority to agree terms for the sale of the Shared Ownership homes 
developed through the Building for Lewisham programme, subject to a RICS 
valuation and the sales being in conformity with GLA funding, including all 
subsequent staircasing sales. This decision is dependent on Mayor and 
Cabinet accepting GLA AHP grant funding in the 2021-2026 Programme 
which is being considered by separate report on 3rd November 2021. 

(6) GLA AHP 2021-2026 grant be applied, if accepted by Mayor and Cabinet 
by separate report on the 3 November 2021 to 171 Shared Ownership 
homes and that Right to Buy Receipts be applied to the remaining Shared 
Ownership homes in the Building for Lewisham programme where GLA 
funding is unavailable with this application and any subsequent reallocation 
of these funds be delegated to the Executive Director for Housing, 
Regeneration and Public Realm; and 

(7) authority be delegated to the Director of Inclusive Regeneration the 
ability to vary the rent on the unsold equity of these Shared Ownership 
homes, if necessary, to make them more affordable but within agreed 
viability assumptions. 

 

9. Building Security & Related Services 
 

Having considered an open officer report, and a presentation by the Cabinet 
Member for Finance and Resources, Councillor Amanda De Ryk, the Mayor 
and Cabinet agreed that officers be authorised to carry out an open tender 
exercise in order to procure building security and related services on the 
basis of a three year contract with an optional two year extension. 
 

 
10 Catford Regeneration Programme – Approval to Tender works to 

refurbish the former Catford Constitutional Club 
 

Having considered an open and a confidential officer report, and a 
presentation by the Mayor, the Mayor and Cabinet agreed that: 
 
(1) the pursuance of a tender process to engage a suitable contractor to 
undertake the refurbishment of the former CCC building be approved; 
 
(2) authority be delegated to the Executive Director for Housing, 
Regeneration and Public Realm, in consultation with the Executive Director 
for Corporate Services, to approve the most suitable procurement route to 
seek a contractor for the refurbishment of the former CCC building.  
 
(3) authority be delegated to the Executive Director of Housing, 
Regeneration and Public Realm, in consultation with the Executive Director 
for Corporate Services to approve the engagement of the most economically 
viable contractor to undertake the refurbishment of the former CCC building 

Page 33



up to a maximum value with Pre-tender estimates and approval thresholds 
being outlined within Part 2 for reasons of commercial sensitivity; and 
 
(4) Lewisham Council are already affiliated to the London wide Dangerous 
Structures Consortium framework contract that was retendered via an 
Official Journal of the European Union (OJEU) process by Hounslow 
Council and won by Wates Property Services Ltd on 18 March 2021 and 
note be taken changes made via the retendered process now include a 
Planned Works section that requires approval from Mayor and Cabinet for 
officers to use and authorisation for this is sought. 
 

11. Procurement of a replacement Housing Management System and 
implementation of a Customer Relationship Management System   

 
Having considered an open and a confidential officer report, and a 
presentation by the Cabinet Member for Democracy, Refugees & 
Accountability, Councillor Kevin Bonavia, the Mayor and Cabinet agreed 
that: 

 
(1) the commencement of a tender exercise be approved to replace the 
incumbent Housing Management System with a Customer Relationship 
Management System; 
 
(2) authority be delegated to the Executive Director for Corporate Resources 
to approve the procurement process; and 
 
(3) authority be delegated to the Executive Director for Corporate Resources 
the decision to award the contract to the winning bidder resulting from the 
competitive tender. 

 
12. Consultation Results and Feedback on Proposed New Parking 

Arrangements on Housing Estate Land 
 

Having considered an open and a confidential officer report, and a 
presentation by the Mayor, the Mayor and Cabinet agreed that: 

 
(1) the results and feedback from the statutory Section 105 consultation with 
secure tenants, and the non-statutory consultation undertaken with 
leaseholders be received;  
 
(2) the introduction of TMOs for the purpose of managing and enforcing 
parking on Housing Estate land be approved and to note that this includes 
existing Housing Estate parking sites and any additional sites where new 
build developments are being constructed by Lewisham Homes; 

 
(3) authority be delegated to the Executive Director of Housing, 
Regeneration and the Public Realm to consider the outcome of the Statutory 
TMO consultation process and whether or not to approve the 
implementation of the new scheme; 

 

Page 34



(4) Subject to the new scheme being implemented following consideration of 
the outcome of the Statutory TMO consultation process, officers be 
instructed to undertake a review of the parking charges for current Housing 
Estates within the first year of implementation of the new scheme and to 
agree that the scope of the review will involve moving to emissions-based 
parking permits on Housing Estates to align with all other permits issued in 
the borough and that the review will include an assessment of the socio-
economic impacts of any emissions-based scheme, the results of the review 
to be reported back to Mayor and Cabinet prior to consideration by Mayor 
and Cabinet of any recommendations for a new charging structure; and 
 
(5) authority be delegated to the Executive Director of Housing, 
Regeneration and the Public Realm to carry out and consider responses to 
approve future Section 105 and TMO statutory consultations connected to 
the implementation of new parking enforcement sites on Housing Estate 
land and including new sites being introduced as a result of new build 
developments on Housing Estates. 

 
 
Kim Wright 
Chief Executive,  
Lewisham Town Hall,  
Catford SE6 4RU  
November 4 2021 

Page 35



 

 

 

KEY DECISION 

 

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

 

Mayor and Cabinet 

 

 

 

Award of Contract  
Drug and Alcohol Services  

(Core Contract) 

Date: 3rd November 2021 

Key decision: Yes.  

Class: Part 1 

Ward(s) affected: All 

Contributors: Executive Director of Corporate Resources and Substance Misuse 
Commissioning team 

 

CCimmisonersCommissioning Team Timeline and Engagement  
 

9 June 2021 – Mayor & Cabinet approval to procure suitable provider to deliver 
substance misuse services (based on lower budget)  
10 June 2021 – Director of Corporate Resources approval to procure substance 
misuse services  
3 November 2021 – Award of Contract 

 

Outline and recommendations 
 

           The Mayor and Cabinet are recommended to appoint Change, Grow, Live to deliver the 
Core Contract Service for Adults with Alcohol and Substance Misuse. The contract will 
be for an initial period of 3 years, commencing on 1st April 2022, with an option to extend 
for a further 1 + 1 years. The annual contract value will be £2,281,700 up to a maximum 
contract value of £11,408,500 over a full 5 year period.   

The existing 2021-22 contract value is £2,427,608. This contract is fully funded through 
the 2021/22 grant from Public Health England, the Mayor’s Office for Police and Crime 
and the Ministry for Housing Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Page 36

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

1. Summary 

1.1 The London Borough of Lewisham commissions a range of services to create a system 
to meet the treatment needs of those with drug and alcohol problems. 

1.2 The treatment system provides medical treatment and rehabilitation programmes as 
well as intensive support services that promote recovery and encourage individuals to 
maintain their recovery through engagement in positive activities such as employment, 
training or volunteering. The system also delivers support through arrangements known 
as ‘shared care’ with GPs in the borough and work with community pharmacies on 
harm minimisation projects. 

1.3 The system consists of four main contracted services: 

 Core contract  

 Community based / shared care service for people with drug and alcohol problems 

 Drug and alcohol treatment service for young people under 25  

 Detox and rehabilitation services  

1.4 The core service delivers interventions for adults aged 18 years and over with complex 
needs including poly-drug use and dual diagnosis (with Mental Health conditions).  It 
provides support, treatment and rehabilitation programmes that promote recovery and 
encourage individuals to maintain their recovery through engagement in positive 
activities such as employment and training. The service provides prescriptions for 
opioid substitute medications such as Methadone as well as managing the interface 
with health services including hospitals and pharmacies. 

1.5      The current provider of this service is Change, Grow, Live (CGL), formerly known as 
CRI, who also deliver the Integrated Offender Management (IOM) service providing the 
interface with the Criminal Justice System.  

1.7      The treatment system was reconfigured in 2015 and 2017, although the core contract 
remains in place since 2010.            

1.8 The current core contract is due to expire on 31 March 2022 and therefore officers 
have undertaken a full review of the current system to develop proposals to better meet 
need.  

1.9  This report summarises the work undertaken and makes recommendations regarding 
the procurement approach which consists of an open tender exercise leading to the 
award of a three-year contract with two one-year extension options 

1.10    This approach is recommended in order to deliver best value and to provide stability 
within the treatment system. The nature of the contract will allow flexibility to respond to 
a changing policy landscape.  

 

2.      Recommendations  

2.1 The Mayor and Cabinet are recommended to appoint Change, Grow, Live to deliver the 
Core Contract Service for Adults with Alcohol and Substance Misuse. The contract will 
be for an initial period of 3 years, commencing on 1st April 2022, with an option to extend 
for a further 1 + 1 years. The annual contract value will be £2,281,700 up to a maximum 
contract value of £11,408,500 over a full 5 year period.    

The current 2021-22 contract value is £2,429,208. The contract cost is fully funded 
from a combination of main Public Health Grant, the Mayor’s Office for Policing and 

Page 37

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

Crime (MOPAC) grant via the London Crime Prevention Fund, Rough Sleeping Drug & 
Alcohol Treatment Grant via Public Health England and Section 31 Grant for additional 
drug treatment, crime and harm reduction activity via Public Health England. There is 
no contribution from the Council’s General Fund budgets. 

 
 

3. Policy Context 

3.1 The procurement of this service meets the corporate strategy 2018-22 as follows: 

 Priority 3, Giving children and young people the best start in life; the renewal of 
the contract will provide treatment and support to families where substance 
misuse has been identified as a concern regarding child protection and safe 
guarding. 
 

 Priority 5, Delivering and defending: health care and support; the services within 
the contract will provide physical and mental health assessments on all service 
users and where appropriate refer to primary and secondary NHS services. 
There will be a strong emphasis on education, training and leisure activities to 
support the service users’ self-improvement and assist with re- integration into 
the community. 

 

 Priority 7, Building safer communities: safety, security and a visible presence; the 
renewal of this contract will support the work within the partnership to combat 
anti-social behaviour that is linked to alcohol and drug misuse. 

3.2      London Borough of Lewisham has a statutory responsibility under the Crime and 
Disorder Act 1998 to work with partners to reduce crime, disorder and substance 
misuse. 

3.3      The National Drug Strategy 2017 puts a key focus on recovery.  Whilst recognising that 
recovering from dependent substance misuse is an individual person-centred journey, 
there are high aspirations for increasing recovery outcomes.  Drug and alcohol 
recovery systems are increasingly being geared towards the achievement of the 
following outcomes: 

 Freedom from dependence on drugs or alcohol 

 Prevention of drug related deaths and blood borne viruses 

 A reduction in crime and re-offending 

 Sustained employment 

 The ability to access and sustain suitable accommodation 

 Improvement in mental and physical health and wellbeing 

 Improved relationships with family members, partners and friends 

 The capacity to be an effective and caring parent 

3.4      The National Alcohol Strategy also sets a range of outcomes underpinned by the 
understanding the need to: 

 Ensure everyone is aware of the risks of excessive alcohol consumption and can 
make informed choices about responsible drinking 

 Recognise that some people will need support to change their behaviour and 
ensuring that this is available, particularly for the most vulnerable in our community. 

3.5       The Strategy has identified reducing Alcohol Harm as one of nine priority areas for 
action over the next ten years highlighting identification of harm, reduction of hospital 
admissions and increased numbers of adults and young people accessing and 

Page 38

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

completing services as areas where more work is required. 

3.6      A strong evidence base exists for the range of interventions that are effective in 
substance misuse. Detailed statistical analysis estimates that, nationally, every pound 
invested in drug treatment saves four pounds in reduced demands on health and 
justice and society as a whole. When modelled specifically for Lewisham this increases 
to saving of £4 for every £1 spent with the accrued benefits over time being even 
higher than this.  

3.7       The Core Contract also meets the Council’s responsibilities to the Mayor’s Office for 
Policing and Crime (MOPAC) which delivers the Mayor’s role as the Police and Crime 
Commissioner for London. MOPAC are committed to delivering their Police and Crime 
Plan and have provided funding to local authorities to deliver specific local delivery 
projects of which the IOM service is one. The Council have committed to delivering this 
service, or similar, until the end of March 2022 with the expectation that funding will 
continue beyond this point. 

4.  Background 

4.1  The Prevention, Inclusion & Public Health Commissioning Team commissions a range 
of services to meet the needs of those with a drug and/or alcohol problem and to 
reduce harm to society as a whole. 

4.2 The majority of the treatment services provided in Lewisham are funded through the 
Public Health (PH) grant which contributes £3,412,000 to the overall treatment budget 
of £3,783,000 for 2021/22.  

4.3 The remaining funding of £371,000 comes from the Mayor’s Office for Police and 
Crime (MOPAC) –London Crime Prevention Fund and funds specific elements of the 
Change, Grow, Live (CGL) contract  

4.4 As 3.7 above the core contract also meets the Council’s responsibilities to the Mayor’s 
Office for Policing and Crime (MOPAC) which delivers the Mayor’s role as the Police 
and Crime Commissioner for London. MOPAC are committed to delivering their Police 
and Crime Plan and have provided funding to local authorities to deliver specific local 
delivery projects of which the Integrated Offender Management service is one. The 
Council have committed to delivering this service, or similar, until the end of March 
2022 with the expectation that funding would continue beyond this point. 

4.5 London Borough of Lewisham has a statutory responsibility under the Crime and 
Disorder Act 1998 to work with partners to reduce crime, disorder and substance 
misuse. 

4.6       The Prevention, Inclusion and Public Health team works to align services with the 
ambition of Public Health England (PHE) to reduce health inequalities and the 
Government's Drug and Alcohol Strategies to increase the number of individuals 
recovering from addiction. The team works to reduce drug and alcohol related 
offending as it is well demonstrated that cessation of drug use reduces re-offending 
significantly. This in turn will have benefits to a range of wider services and will help 
reduce harm in local communities. 

5.      Procurement Arrangements 

5.1 Full procurement arrangements are set out section five of the Part 2 report. 

6.       Synopsis of the bids received. 

6.1 Full synopsis of the bids received are set out in section 6 of the Part 2 report.  

Page 39

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

7. Financial implications  

7.1      Full financial implications are set out in section seven of the part 2 report  
 

8. Legal implications  

8.1  The value of the individual contract across its term exceeds £500,000, which means 
that this is a Category A contract for the purposes of the Council’s Contract Procedure 
Rules. The Contract falls under the Light Touch Regime under the Public Contract 
Regulations 2015 (“PCR 2015”) being a Schedule 3 service: (health, social and related 
services or supply services of domestic help and nursing personnel). 

8.2   It is mandatory for Schedule 3 contracts over the limits to be advertised on FTS and 
also advertised within 24 hours of FTS advertising on Contracts Finder, with an 
advertisement complying with requirements set out in PCR 2015.  Award notices must 
also be published on FTS and Contracts Finder in the prescribed form. 

8.3   Procedures for tendering are to be determined by contracting authorities in accordance 
with regulation 76 PCR 2015. These require procedures to be transparent and ensure 
equal treatment of suppliers. Time limits must also be reasonable and proportionate. 

8.4  The rationale for the proposed award is set out in the bid analysis in the part 2 report. 
This decision is a Key Decision under Article 16.2 (b) and Article 16.2 (c) (xxiii) of the 
Constitution as it will have an impact on more than one ward and it has a value of more 
than £200,000.  It is therefore required to be contained in the current Key Decision 
Plan.  

8.6    The Equality Act 2010 (the Act) introduced a new public sector equality duty (the 
equality duty or the duty).  It covers the following nine protected characteristics: age, 
disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and 
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. 

In summary, the Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the 
need to: 

 Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct 
prohibited by the Act. 

 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

 Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and 
those who do not. 

 The duty continues to be a “have regard duty”, and the weight to be attached to it is 
a matter for the Mayor, bearing in mind the issues of relevance and proportionality. 

 It is not an absolute requirement to eliminate unlawful discrimination, advance 
equality of opportunity or foster good relations. 

 

8.7      The Equality and Human Rights Commission has recently issued Technical Guidance 
on the Public Sector Equality Duty and statutory guidance entitled “Equality Act 2010 
Services, Public Functions & Associations Statutory Code of Practice”.  The Council 
must have regard to the statutory code in so far as it relates to the duty and attention is 
drawn to Chapter 11 which deals particularly with the equality duty. The Technical 
Guidance also covers what public authorities should do to meet the duty. This includes 
steps that are legally required, as well as recommended actions. The guidance does 
not have statutory force but nonetheless regard should be had to it, as failure to do so 
without compelling reason would be of evidential value. The statutory code and the 
technical guidance can be found at:  http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/legal-and-

Page 40

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/legal-and-policy/equality-act/equality-act-codes-of-practice-and-technical-guidance/


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

policy/equality-act/equality-act-codes-of-practice-and-technical-guidance/ 
 

8.8 The Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) has previously issued five guides       
for public authorities in England giving advice on the equality duty:  

 1.  The essential guide to the public sector equality duty 

 2.  Meeting the equality duty in policy and decision-making  

 3.  Engagement and the equality duty 

 4.  Equality objectives and the equality duty 

5.  Equality information and the equality duty 

8.9  The essential guide provides an overview of the equality duty requirements including 
the general equality duty, the specific duties and who they apply to. It covers what 
public authorities should do to meet the duty including steps that are legally required, 
as well as recommended actions. The other four documents provide more detailed 
guidance on key areas and advice on good practice. Further information and resources 
are available at: http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/advice-and-guidance/public-
sector-equality-duty/guidance-on-the-equality-duty/ 

  9. Equalities implications 

   9.1 The drug and alcohol contracts provide services for adults who are requiring drug and 
alcohol treatment both in the community and in residential settings.  Each service is 
required to abide by equality legislation. The service specifications for the new services 
will incorporate the findings of the Joint strategic needs assessment and will focus on 
reducing barriers to treatment for all underrepresented groups in line with the Equality 
Act 2010, and have considered the potential impact on all of the nine protected 
characteristics. 

   9.2 The Council’s Equalities objectives are addressed in the contract documentation and 
were part of the tender evaluation criteria. 

10. Climate change and environmental implications 

10.1 The Council’s Environmental objectives are addressed in the contract documentation 
and are part of the tender evaluation criteria. 

10.2 There are no environmental implications. 

11. Crime and disorder implications 

11.1 The Tier 2/3 Substance Misuse – Core Contract Service relates to the provision of 
specialist drug and alcohol treatment to Lewisham residents, which is a critical 
component of Lewisham’s substance misuse Adult Treatment Plan and therefore make 
an important contribution to the work of the Safer Lewisham Partnership and link in 
directly with the Safer, Stronger Communities outcome to ‘minimise harm caused by 
illegal drugs.  

12. Health and wellbeing implications  

12.1 The contract/services identified in this report, are required to ensure that continuity of 
care and support is in place for the service users accessing these services. If this 
contract is not commissioned, there is a risk of the Local Authority not fulfilling its 
statutory duties under the Care Act, the core contract contributes the decrease in the 

Page 41

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/legal-and-policy/equality-act/equality-act-codes-of-practice-and-technical-guidance/


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

number of patients with complex needs attending A&E, Primary and Secondary health 
services, the risk of neglect through lack of support and a reputational risk to the 
Council. 

13. Social Value 

13.1    The Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 requires that the council considers, before 
commencing a procurement process, how wider social, economic and environmental 
benefits that may improve the wellbeing of the local area can be secured.  

13.2    Bidders were therefore asked to submit a method statement that has a weighted score 
of 10% Bidders needed to demonstrate how the service will contribute to the key social 
value outcomes, including how the organisation works with local employers and 
training organisations to remove stigma and barriers to support individuals in returning 
to employment, training and/or education 

13.3    Making Lewisham healthier – Lewisham has identified 9 long term outcomes as part of 
its 2013 strategy and its intended that this contract will actively contribute to reducing 
the harm caused by substance misuse specifically alcohol, improving mental health 
and wellbeing, delaying and reducing the need for long term care and support, and 
reducing the number of emergency admissions for people with long term conditions.  

13.4    A potential direct consequence of difficulties in access to or availability of Tier 3 
treatment interventions could result in an increase in crime and acute admissions to 
hospitals with a potential negative impact on CCG budgets as a result. 

13.5    Employment, Skills & Economy – Achieving stability in treatment and sustained 
recovery brings economic benefits to the borough through enabling drug and alcohol 
using residents to find work, access training and achieve their goals as well as 
contributing to the local economy. It also brings positive economic benefits for the 
council in reducing ongoing need and financial costs for public health funded services 
and ASC by enabling residents to live independent lives with improved health and 
wellbeing. 

13.6   The evaluation of the bids has ensured that suppliers have a good track record in 
delivering services to a diverse group of service users. It has also assessed the quality 
of clinical governance and safeguarding policies and protocols, thus providing 
assurance that residents will be offered safe, clinically robust care and be safeguarded 
at all times. 

13.7   The council is an officially accredited London Living Wage (LLW) Employer and is 
committed to ensuring that, where appropriate, contractors and subcontractors 
engaged by the council to provide works or services within Lewisham pay their staff at 
a minimum rate equivalent to the LLW rate. Successful contractors will be expected to 
meet LLW requirements and contract conditions requiring the payment of LLW will be 
included in the tender documents. 

13.8   The incorporation of Social Value into Lewisham contracts will significantly help the 
Council to deliver on its strategic corporate and Mayoral priorities and deliver added 
value for the borough as a whole. 

13.9    Once contracts have been awarded the Social value delivery and monitoring be 
formally reported on the KPI Performance report. 

14. Background papers 

14.1     Permission to Procure Report for Mayor and Cabinet - Substance Misuse (09062021) 

Page 42

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports


  

Is this report easy to understand? 
Please give us feedback so we can improve. 
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports   

Permission To 

Procure Report for Mayor and Cabinet - Substance Misuse.pdf
 

15. Glossary 

SMU GLOSSARY.pdf

 

16. Report author and contact 

16.1 Danny Waites - Commissioning Manager (Addictions)  

            Jason Browne – Commissioning Officer (Addictions)  

            Prevention, Inclusion & Public Health Commissioning Team  

16.2 Danny.waites@lewisham.gov.uk 020 8314 8015 

            Jason.Browne@lewisham.gov.uk 020 8314 3263 

16.3  Comments for and on behalf of the Executive Director for Corporate Resources 

16.4 Yusuf Shaibu 

16.5 Comments for and on behalf of the Director of Law, Governance and HR 

16.6 Stephanie Fleck (Ref JW) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 43

https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
mailto:Danny.waites@lewisham.gov.uk
mailto:Jason.Browne@lewisham.gov.uk


 

KEY DECISION 

 

  

 Mayor and Cabinet 

Shared Ownership: Approval to Market, Sell and Manage 

Date: 03/11/2021 

Key decision: Yes  

Class: Part 1  

Ward(s) affected: ALL WARDS 

Contributors:  

Page 44



 

 

 

Outline and recommendations 

 
It is recommended that Mayor and Cabinet: 

 

Approve that Lewisham Council become a provider of Shared Ownership homes 
within the London Borough of Lewisham. 

Approve the proposed Shared Ownership Policy set out at Section 5 of this report. 

Approve the process of marketing, sale and management of Shared Ownership 
homes to facilitate existing programmes through Lewisham Homes. 

Delegate to the Executive Director for Housing, Regeneration and Public Realm in 
consultation with the Director of Legal, Corporate Governance and Elections, 
authority to agree a variation to the Council’s Management Agreement with 
Lewisham Homes to appoint Lewisham Homes as the Council’s sales and 
marketing agent for all the Council’s Shared Ownership homes and to provide all 
necessary management services in this respect. 

Delegate to the Director of Inclusive Regeneration, in consultation with the Director 
of Law, Corporate Governance & Elections, authority to agree terms for the sale of 
the Shared Ownership homes developed through the Building for Lewisham 
programme, subject to a RICS valuation and the sales being in conformity with GLA 
funding, including all subsequent staircasing sales. This decision is dependent on 
Mayor and Cabinet accepting GLA AHP Funding in the 2021-2026 Programme 
which is being considered by separate report on 3rd November 2021. 

To apply GLA AHP 2021-2026 grant, if accepted by Mayor and Cabinet by separate 
report on the 3rd November 2021 to 171 Shared Ownership homes and to agree that 
Right to Buy Receipts will be applied to the remaining Shared Ownership homes in 
the Building for Lewisham programme where GLA funding is unavailable. This 
application and any subsequent reallocation of these funds to be delegated to the 
Executive Director for Housing, Regeneration and Public Realm.  

To delegate to the Director of Inclusive Regeneration the ability to vary the rent on 
the unsold equity of these Shared Ownership homes, if necessary, to make them 
more affordable but within agreed viability assumptions. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 45



 

 

Timeline of engagement and decision-making 

 

15 January 2020 Mayor and Cabinet approved the commencement of the Building for 
Lewisham Programme, a continuation of the Council’s housebuilding programme. 

November 2020 London Mayor announced the Affordable Homes for London AHP 2021-
2026 Prospectus. 

 

1. Summary 

1.1. This report seeks permission for the Council in partnership with Lewisham Homes to 
market, sell and manage Shared Ownership homes, as part of the Building for 
Lewisham Programme. In addition, it sets out the priority criteria for the sale of these 
homes to Lewisham residents and other purchasers. 

 

2. Recommendations 
 
It is recommended that Mayor and Cabinet: 

 
2.1 Approve that Lewisham Council become a provider of Shared Ownership homes within 

the London Borough of Lewisham. 

2.2 Approve the the proposed Shared Ownership Policy set out at Section 5 of this report. 

2.3 Approve the process of marketing, sale and management of Shared Ownership homes 
to facilitate existing programmes through Lewisham Homes. 

2.4 Delegate to the Executive Director for Housing, Regeneration and Public Realm in 

Page 46



 

 

consultation with the Director of Legal, Corporate Governance and Elections, authority 
to agree a variation to the Council’s Management Agreement with Lewisham Homes to 
appoint Lewisham Homes as the Council’s sales and marketing agent for all the 
Council’s Shared Ownership homes and to provide all necessary management 
services in this respect. 

2.5 Delegate to the Director of Inclusive Regeneration, in consultation with the Director of 
Law, Corporate Governance & Elections, authority to agree terms for the sale of the 
Shared Ownership homes developed through the Building for Lewisham programme, 
subject to a RICS valuation and the sales being in conformity with GLA funding, 
including all subsequent staircasing sales. This decision is dependent on Mayor and 
Cabinet accepting GLA AHP grant funding in the 2021-2026 Programme which is being 
considered by separate report on 3rd November 2021. 

2.6 To apply GLA AHP 2021-2026 grant, if accepted by Mayor and Cabinet by separate 
report on the 3rd November 2021 to 171 Shared Ownership homes and to agree that 
Right to Buy Receipts will be applied to the remaining Shared Ownership homes in the 
Building for Lewisham programme where GLA funding is unavailable. This application 
and any subsequent reallocation of these funds to be delegated to the Executive 
Director for Housing, Regeneration and Public Realm.  

2.7 To delegate to the Director of Inclusive Regeneration the ability to vary the rent on the 
unsold equity of these Shared Ownership homes, if necessary, to make them more 
affordable but within agreed viability assumptions. 

 

3. Policy Context 

Housing 

3.1. The Council’s Corporate Strategy (2018-2022)  outlines the Council’s vision to deliver 
for residents over the next four years. Building on Lewisham’s historic values of 
fairness, equality and putting our community at the heart of everything we do, the 
Council will create deliverable policies underpinned by a desire to promote vibrant 
communities, champion local diversity and promote social, economic and 
environmental sustainability. Delivering this strategy includes the following priority 
outcomes that relate to the provision of new affordable homes: 

 Tackling the Housing Crisis  – Providing a decent and secure home for everyone. 

 Building an Inclusive local economy – Ensuring every resident can access high-
quality job opportunities, with decent pay and security in our thriving and inclusive 
local economy. 

 Building Safer Communities  – Ensuring every resident feels safe and secure living 
here as we work together towards a borough free from fear of crime.  

 

3.2. Lewisham’s Housing Strategy (2020-2026), includes the following themes that relate to 
the provision of new affordable homes:  

1. Delivering the homes that Lewisham needs. 

2. Preventing homelessness and meeting housing need. 

3. Improving the quality, standard and safety of housing. 

4. Supporting our residents to live safe, independent and active lives. 

5. Strengthening communities and embracing diversity. 

 

Page 47



 

 

4. Background  

4.1. There is another report on this agenda which is being considered, relating to the 
acceptance of GLA AHP 2021-2026 grant. The recommendations in this report which 
assume that grant being available are therefore subject to the grant being accepted by 
Mayor & Cabinet.  

4.2. As part of the Building for Lewisham programme the Council is developing new social 
homes to meet the housing needs of Lewisham residents. As part of this programme 
the Council is also bringing forward a pipeline of shared ownership homes to meet 
affordable housing needs. 

4.3. As part of the GLA’s Building Council Homes for Londoners and the GLA’s Affordable 
Housing Programme 2021-2026, Lewisham Council has been successful in bidding for 
grant to support the delivery of 171 shared ownership homes. The Council envisages 
using RTB receipts to fund any homes above the 171 GLA funded homes (currently 
circa 123 as set out below), to maximise their affordability for local residents and help 
deliver the maximum number of family and social rented homes.  

4.4. These shared ownership homes are at present located on the following sites (please 
note these are indicative numbers and are subject to further planning and feasibility 
testing): 

 Creekside: circa 34 

 Achilles Street Regeneration Scheme: circa 163  

 Ladywell Phase 2: circa 30  

 Thomas Lane Yard: circa 8  

 Drakes Court: circa 6  

 Markwell Close: circa 3  

 Valentine Court: circa 11  

 Dacres Road: circa 4  

 Evelyn Community Centre: circa 35  

4.5. For the Achilles Street Regeneration Scheme: 163 Shared Ownership homes have 
received GLA funding at £60,000 per unit. For Thomas Lane Yard 8 Shared Ownership 
homses have received GLA funding at £60,000 per home i.e. £10.26m in total. 

4.6. RTB receipts have been allocated at 40% of Total Scheme Costs for the circa 123 
other Shared Ownership homes currently in the Building for Lewisham Programme 
where GLA grant funding is not available. 

The Shared Ownership Market 

4.7. Shared ownership has been around for many years and is the most established 
affordable home ownership product. It has helped more than 150,000 people, 
predominantly First Time Buyers get a foot on the property ladder. Shared Ownership 
was firstly offered through Housing Associations. 53 institutional investors have 
entered the market which shows that the product has financial security and that the 
financial institutions are comfortable with development risk.  

Shared Ownership in Lewisham 

4.8. Shared ownership buyers tend to be young singles, couples and sharers or new 
families in their mid to late thirties. They are aspirational buyers, are well-informed and 
have household incomes upward of £35,000. Whilst most providers advertise shares 
for sale from 25%, the average purchased share is between 30-35% and has been on 
a slight downward trajectory from nearer 40% two years ago. The average share 

Page 48



 

 

initially purchased in the London Borough of Lewisham is around 37% based on 
research from other Resgistered Providers operating in the Borough. Lewisham has a 
high percentage of its population at working age (70% 2017 London Datastore 
statistics) with an average age of 35, falling perfectly into the profile of the average 
shared ownership buyer. 

4.9. Prior to Covid-19 the bi annual Affordable Home Show in London sees more than 4500 
attendees looking for an affordable homeownership. The demand for shared ownership 
in London remains strong mainly due to a lack of affordability and high property values 
on the open market. It has become the only way that some first time buyers and those 
who have had relationship breakdowns have the opportunity to buy.  

4.10. In the Lewisham area, the Share to Buy website1, indicates that one bed properties 
average 39.54 enquiries per property and two bed properties average 44.57 enquiries 
per property a phenomenally high volume showing the strong demand for affordable 
home ownership with shared ownership. Share to buy have reviewed the London 
Borough of Lewisham’s area to establish the socio economic demographic of people 
on their database who already live in the borough earn within £25 - £60k.  

4.11. For those looking to buy in the Borough in January 2021 the data shows that their 
income fell within a £30 - £65k range with deposits fairly evenly balanced through all 
levels to £50k+. 84.3% are looking to buy a 1 or 2 bed property. 66.2% are currently 
living in private rented housing and 21.7% with family or friends. 

4.12. Average property prices in the borough are as follows (data from Hometrack): 

Property size Property price range 

1 bed flats £307,500 - £350,000 

2 bed flats £394,000, - £440,000 

2 bed houses £430,000 - £490,000 

3 bed houses £525,000 - £600,500 

 

4.13. Based on the above data this equates to a house price to earnings ratio of 12.5:1. 
Based on a 3.5x income, 86.2% of first time buyers are priced out of buying a flat and 
97.9% a terraced house on the open market.  

4.14. A further indicator that shared ownership is a more affordable option for Lewisham’s 
residents is a comparison with private renting costs. If a resident buys a  25% share in 
a 1 bed flat for £780pcm and £990pcm for a 2 bed flat (based on a 90% LTV mortgage, 
using a (very high) 3.99% interest rate), this compares favourably to median average 
rental values of £1,144pcm for a 1 bed flat and £1,400pcm for a 2 bed flat (based on 
Hometrack data).  

What is Shared Ownership? 

4.15. Shared ownership in London is open to those with a household income of up to 
£90,000, assessed with a debt to income ratio of up to 50%, debt being the rent on the 
unsold share (rent will not exceed 3% of the capital value of the unsold equity at the 
point of the initial sale), service charge and any loans or credit cards. Shared 
ownership is regulated by the Regulator of Social Housing based around the Homes 
England (former HCA) Capital Funding Guide with a GLA variant for London 

                                                

1 A national Shared Ownership online portal 

 

Page 49



 

 

properties. 

4.16. Shared Ownership allows first time buyers and those that do not currently own a home 
to buy a defined equity share of a property whilst paying a subsidised rent on the 
remaining share (which remains owned by the landlord). 

4.17. Shared Owners have the option to buy further shares in the property at a later date up 
to the full value of the property. 

4.18. Shared Ownership properties are part buy and part rent properties. The lease applies 
to the equity share the buyer owns and lays out the roles and responsibilities of both 
Landlord and shared ownership Leaseholder. This includes how the Leaseholderbuys 
more shares or sells the property, and the terms of review of the rent and services 
charges. 

4.19. Shared owners are buy-to live owner occupiers and provide a stable base of residents 
who are invested and present. This helps to create stable mixed communities.   

How the Shared Ownership Model works  

4.20. Eligible applicants buy a defined share of a flat or house from the Council and pay 
subsidised rent on the remaining share which is retained by the Council. 

4.21. Applicants can buy a new build home on a Shared Ownership basis or can buy an 
existing Shared Ownership home through a subsequent resale of a shared ownership 
unit. 

4.22. Applicants will initially purchase between 25% and 75% of the home. The size of the 
share is determined by the purchaser’s ability to afford and sustain the purchase based 
on a Mortgage Advisor’s assessment using the Homes England Shared Ownership 
Calculator as a guide. With resales the buyer must buy the share the existing Shared 
Owner has or more. 

4.23. Buyers must be able to raise a sufficient deposit (usually between 5% and 10%) and 
secure a mortgage to buy a share of the property. There are fewer mortgage products 
available for Shared Ownership than for purchase on the open market, although 
Lenders offering Shared Ownership mortgages have increased from 6 in 2010 to more 
than 29 Lenders now. Lenders and underwriters are seeing this as a long term product 
with a track record, unlike Help to Buy which is likely to be phased out. 

4.24. The Shared Owner can keep buying shares until they own the property outright. This 
process is known as staircasing.  

4.25. The buyer can buy in 10% multiples based on a RICS valuation which the Shared 
Owner must pay for.  

4.26. The Shared Owner will buy a 999 year lease from the Council at a premium fee on new 
build properties. As part of the lease, they will be required to enter the concurrent 
tenancy with the Council and pay rent to the Council. This is calculated as a proportion 
of the equity retained by the Council. 

4.27. The Developer who builds the properties will build with a build warranty which covers 
major repairs to the building. Any repairs to the building and or communal areas that 
fall outside of the build warranty are payable through the service charge which the 
Shared Owner pays monthly.  

4.28. The Shared Owner is responsible for repairs and maintenance inside the property after 
the end of the defect liability period (usually one year after build complete).   

4.29. If the Shared Owner does not own 100% of the property and wishes to sell the 
property, they must allow the Council eight weeks to find a buyer. If no buyer is found 
the Shared Owner can sell the property on the open market. The purchaser benefits 
from any capital uplift of the purchased share. 

Changes to the shared ownership model lease following the “Right to Shared 

Page 50



 

 

Ownership Changes”  

4.30. In 2020 the UK Government announced major reforms of the shared ownership 
regime. The details are as follows: 

 The “Right to Shared Ownership” contained within the Homes England Capital 
Funding Guidance has made changes to the shared ownership model lease for 
homes built and funded by the GLA’s Affordable Housing Programme (AHP) 
2021 – 26. The changes only apply to this funding and not homes using funding 
prior to April 2021. The changes that apply to the Council are: The minimum 
initial share is to be reduced from 25% to 10% 

 Staircasing can take place in tranches of 1% with reduced fees for a minimum 
of 15 years. Purchasers have the option to buy additional shares in increments 
of 1% each year based on the original purchase price adjusted 
upwards/downwards in accordance with the area House Price Index and 
afterwards by 5% minimum tranches. Landlord cannot charge valuation or 
administration fees.  

 Landlords will be responsible for essential repairs and maintenance for the first 
10 years from practical completion or until the shared ownership leaseholder 
staircases to 100% ownership, where work is not covered under the new build 
guarantee warranty. Essential repairs relate to the composition of the building 
and external structural parts where the landlord is the owner this include internal 
structural repairs to floors, stairs, walls and ceilings.  

 Essential repairs and maintenance inside the flat is the Leaseholders 
responsibility, however, they will be able to reclaim costs from the landlord for 
essential repairs and maintenance up to £500 per year carrying forward any 
unused money to the following year. The work to be undertaken with the 
Councils approved contractors and repaid on completion of the work. 

 Nomination period and pre-emption clause for the Landlords exclusive 
marketing period to find a buyer suitable for shared ownership on a resale (pre-
owned shared ownership home selling period) is reduced from 8weeks to 
4weeks.  

 The shared ownership standard model lease term changes from 125 years to 
999 years. 

 The final change, which Councils are exempt from is the introduction of the 
“Right to Shared Ownership” to enable social housing tenants, subject to  
qualifying criteria to purchase their rented home using the new shared 
ownership model.  

4.31. The Shared Ownership element of the BfL programme has been modelled and tested 
using these proposed changes. 

4.32. It is noted however that the first tranche of shared ownership homes at the Creekside 
development will be sold under the 2018-2022 GLA Shared Ownership model where 
the council will be obliged to follow their affordability and priority guidelines and will be 
exempt from any changes that may result from “the Right to Shared Ownership” 
guidance’. 

Why households would consider choosing this tenure 

4.33. The Shared Ownership tenure can help households to purchase a particular type of 
home, or a home in a particular part of Lewisham that they would not be able afford to 
buy in full on the open market. 

4.34. The option of a Shared Ownership home can increase household choices particularly 
in neighbourhoods that have a limited supply of homes for sale.  

4.35. The option of a Shared Ownership home can allow or enable households on limited 
incomes to purchase a larger or specialist type of home to meet their needs. 

Page 51



 

 

4.36. Deposits and mortgage costs for Shared ownership homes can be much lower than 
when buying a home in full, therefore making it a more affordable route into home 
ownership. 

4.37. Shared Ownership homes and their availability can also help to bridge the affordability 
gap in Lewisham where average house prices are 12.5 times average earnings. 

5. Lewisham Council Proposed Shared Ownership Policy 

5.1. In order to market, sell and manage a portfolio of shared ownership homes the Council 
has developed a Shared Ownership Policy that will be used to assess eligibility and 
prioritisation. 

  Introduction to Lewisham’s Shared Ownership Policy 

5.1.1.  This section outlines the Council’s Policy with regards to: 

 The income eligibility range for applicants to these schemes in the Borough; 

 The prioritisation of applicants for Lewisham Council Shared Ownership properties; 

and 

 The role of Registered Providers (RPs) in providing Shared Ownership in the 

Borough. 

 

5.1.2 This policy is developed in accordance with: 

 

 Home England Affordable Housing Capital Funding Guide 

 Greater London Authority (GLA) Affordable Housing Capital Funding Guide 

 EU General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) (2016/679) 

 Data Protection Act (DPA) 2018 

 The Equality Act 2010  

 Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 
 

5.1.3 This policy applies to Lewisham Council Shared Ownership properties only. 

 

Definition of Shared Ownership 

 

5.1.4 Shared ownership is where an organisation owns the freehold or main lease of a 

property and sells a share to the person who lives in the property. Shares are initially 

made available between a minimum of 10 per cent and a maximum of 75 per cent. The 

occupier can staircase at any point until they eventually buy the full share of the 

property. Rent is paid on the unsold equity. 

 

5.2 Eligibility for Shared Ownership properties 

 

5.2.1 Financial eligibility 

 

The GLA set a maximum salary cap on the household income for shared ownership at 

£90,000. Beyond this households are not eligible for shared ownership. 

5.2.2 General eligibility 

Applicants must also: 

 Be unable to purchase a property suitable to meet their needs on the open market; 

and 

 

Page 52



 

 

 Be able to afford their purchase and sustain their housing costs and demonstrate 

that they have the financial resource available to do so. Applicants will be required 

to undertake appropriate checks with the seller of the property. The application 

process also includes an assessment of affordability using a calculator provided by 

Homes England (HE) to ensure that buyers are able to afford and sustain their 

share; and 

 

 Be first time buyers, except where they are downsizing, moving from or within a 

Lewisham Council regeneration scheme, or moving into a larger home to meet their 

household need; and 

 

 Be British or EEA citizens who are exercising their treaty rights or have indefinite 

leave to remain. 

 

5.3 Prioritisation  

 

5.3.1 For any type of Shared Ownership property, priority will go to Armed Forces personnel 

(serving military personnel and former members of the British Armed Forces 

discharged in the last 2 years), in accordance with Homes England and GLA guidance, 

and Armed Forces Covenant for Lewisham. 

 

5.3.2 Lewisham Council will also prioritise the following groups for Lewisham Council 

developments and properties. This includes where there is no grant funding from the 

GLA. 

 

 Priority One:  

Lewisham social housing tenants. 

 Priority Two:  

Lewisham residents on the Housing Register. 

 Priority Three:  

Current Lewisham residents. 

 Priority Four:  

Applicants who work in the borough. 

 Priority Five:  

Applicants living or working in another London borough. 

 

5.3.3 Where two people have the same priority status, priority will be on a first come, first 

serve basis. If two people with the same priority status apply for a Shared Ownership 

property at the same time, priority will be given to whoever has lived in the borough for 

longer. For working in the borough priority this will be ordered by who has worked in 

the borough for the longest period. 

 

5.4 Process for applying 

 

5.4.1 Those interested in purchasing a Shared Ownership house are able to register their 

interest on the Lewisham Homes website. 

 

5.4.2 Once registered you will be invited to complete a Lewisham Homes Shared Ownership 

application form and then have a financial assessment with the nominated Mortgage 

Broker before attending a viewing. 

 

Page 53



 

 

5.5 Equality and diversity 

 

5.5.1 Lewisham is home to people from a wide range of backgrounds, from many 

communities.  This Shared Ownership Policy contributes to our aspirations for making 

Lewisham a good place to live, work and learn for people of all communities.  

 

5.5.2 In our Corporate Strategy 2018-22, we committed to creating an “Open Lewisham”, 

making sure that Lewisham is a place where diversity and cultural heritage is 

recognised as a strength and celebrated. This means that we are trying to ensure that 

no section of the community should be excluded from the benefits and opportunities 

available, and that we have regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, harassment 

and victimization, the need to advance equality of opportunity and to foster good 

relations between minority groups and others. We will operate the Shared Ownership 

Policy equally to everyone who applies to or is on the Housing Register, regardless of 

their race, gender, gender reassignment, disability, age, sexual orientation, martial or 

civil partnership status, pregnancy or maternity, religion or belief. We are committed to 

delivering quality services to all.   

 

5.5.3 An Equality Impact Assessment was carried out in relation to this policy in October 

2021 which will be kept under regular review.  

 

5.6 Review of this policy 

 

5.6.1 This policy will be reviewed on an annual basis.   

 

6. Purchase Process 

Marketing & Allocations 

6.1  Marketing  

6.1.1 The Council will use a variety of approaches to advertise Shared Ownership properties 
across the borough. This will include marketing new Shared Ownership homes in 
advance of their completion and gaining off plan sales to minimise void loss. The 
borough will aim to market in local media first to encourage local take up of sales. The 
extent of marketing will be determined on a site-by-site basis.  
 

6.1.2 Resale properties will be advertised through the GLA Shared Ownership website and 
affordable Homes portals used by Registered Providers.           
 

6.2 Valuations 
 
6.2.1 Valuations of Shared Ownership properties will be carried out by an independent 

member of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) and reviewed every 3 
months in accordance with the Homes England / GLA Capital Funding Guide. This 
includes both the market value at initial sale and on all staircasing transactions, except 
for the gradual staircasing of 1%, which is based on the original purchase price, resale 
price or remortgage, adjusted in line with the local Housing Price Index. 

6.3 Eligibility and Affordability Checks 

 
6.3.1  Anyone interested in purchasing a LBL Shared Ownership property must register with 

the Lewisham /Lewisham Homes website. The agent will assess the eligibility of the 
prospective purchaser which will include a financial assessment by a specialist shared 
ownership Mortgage Advisor.  

Page 54



 

 

 
6.3.2  In order to be eligible applicants must: 
 

 have a household income of less than £90,000; 

 be unable to purchase a property to meet their needs on the open market; 

 be able to afford to meet the housing payments and sustain home ownership in the 
longer term; 

 Move into the home and use it as their primary residence; and 

 Not already be a homeowner in the UK or abroad. 
 

6.3.3  Applicants will be required to provide: 
 

 Proof of identification; 

 Proof of income (usually by way of latest three pay slips or last three years accounts 
for self-employed applicants); 

 Proof of savings; and 

 A mortgage in Principle  

 Credit reference (where applicable). 
 
6.3.4  Additional evidence may be required on request. 
 

6.3.5  If more than six months pass between application and exchange of contracts the 
applicant will be required to provide additional evidence that their circumstances have 
not changed. Applicants must notify the Council and Sales Agent of any changes to 
their circumstances after their application has been approved. 

 
6.4 Joint Applicants 
 
6.4.1 More than one person may apply for a Shared Ownership home. Applications from 

more than one person will be considered as joint applications. Joint applicants must 
become joint owners of the property. Anyone joining in the application who already 
owns, or part owns a home must sell it at the time of jointly buying through Shared 
Ownership. 
 

6.4.2 An existing Council tenant qualifying for Shared Ownership may have a partner who 
does not wish to join in the application. The application can proceed in the sole name 
of the qualifying applicant. In this situation other such members of the household will 
be treated in line with Council policy independently from the Shared Ownership 
application. 

 
6.5  Affordability 
 
6.5.1 Minimum initial shares will be set at 25% (10% on schemes that must meet the “Right 

to Shared Ownership” requirements through GLA 2021-26 Affordable Homes 
Programme funding rules) however applicants will be expected to buy the maximum 
share they can afford and sustain up to a maximum share of 75%. 

 
6.5.2 The Council will undertake a rigorous affordability check using the Homes 

England/GLA shared ownership affordability  calculator to determine the level of 
suitable shares ensuring that: 

 

 The monthly housing costs including mortgage repayments, rent and services 
charges are between 25%-45% of an applicant’s gross wage; and 

Page 55



 

 

 The mortgage amount is between 2.5x and 4.5x the applicant’s gross annual 
income 

 
6.5.3 The Council will require applicants who are able to purchase their share without 

mortgage finance to provide evidence as to why this is required. Money laundering 
checks will be required in these circumstances. 
 

6.5.4 The Council will not provide financial advice to applicants and any guidance given will 
be limited to information only. 
 

6.5.5 The Council will require that applicants seek independent financial advice from an 
advisor with an understanding of the Shared Ownership product and associate lender 
requirements. 

 
6.6  Reservation 
 

6.6.1 A property will be reserved once affordability and eligibility checks have been 
approved. The Council will charge the applicant an administration fee for this of £500. 
Upon receipt of the reservation fee the property is held to sell to them provided they 
exchange contracts within 6 weeks. 

 
6.6.2 An applicant who is an existing Council or Social Housing tenant will not be eligible for 

Shared Ownership if they are in breach of their tenancy agreement at the time of 
application. This includes but is not limited to rent arrears. 

 
6.6.3 Applicants who owe any money to the Council before or during the purchase process 

will not be allowed to progress until the debts have been cleared, to the satisfaction of 
the department responsible for collecting the debt. 

 
6.7   Existing owners 
 
6.7.1 The Council will allow owner-occupiers to apply for a Shared Ownership property 

where they meet the general eligibility criteria (i.e. their household income is less than 
£90,000 and they are unable to purchase without assistance) and are assessed by the 
Council as being in housing need. 
 

6.7.2 Owner- occupiers will be required to sell their property as part of the Shared Ownership 
purchase. In exceptional cases the Council will consider supporting an application to 
the GLA for this requirement to be waived, e.g. where a separated person no longer 
has access to their original property. 

 
6.8   Rent and Service Charges 

 
6.8.1 Shared Owners will pay rent and service charge, including administration fees relating 

to the property, to the Council. 
 
6.9  Rent 
 
6.9.1 The initial annual rent will not exceed 3% of the capital value of the unsold equity at the 

point of the initial sale. 
 

6.9.2 The Council will take local market conditions into account when setting the rent and 
may consider charging a rent lower than 2.75 % where affordability is considered to be 
an issue and the scheme and programme viability can be maintained. This will be 
determined by the Director of Inclusive Regeneration, as set out in recommendation 
2.7 

Page 56



 

 

 
6.9.3 The Council will review the rent on an annual basis. Annual rent increase will be limited 

to Retail Price Index (RPI) plus 0.5%. When RPI is nil or negative, rent increases will 
be 0.5%. This will be explained to all buyers at the point of sale. 

 
6.9.4 The Council will notify Shared Owners of the new rent in writing, as detailed in the 

lease. 
 
 
6.10 Service charges 
 

6.10.1 The Council will charge service charges on all its Shared Ownership properties. 
Service charges will be calculated on an annual basis. 
 

6.10.2 The Council will consult on service charges where required. It will meet its statutory 
obligations under section 20 of the Landlord and Tenant Act 1985 to consult 
leaseholders before carrying out certain works or entering into certain agreements that 
affect the dwelling or building which will result in service charges being incurred. 
 

6.10.3 The service charge provisions differ for Shared Ownership houses and flats: 
 

6.10.4 For flats the Council will estimate the charges to be incurred in the following year 
reconciled at the end of the Account Year. An annual service charge will be set based 
on this estimate. Shared Owners will be charged for this monthly at the same time as 
rent to spread the cost.  

 
6.10.5 The Council will provide a summary of the costs incurred. 
 

6.10.6 The Council will charge an administration fee for time spent on tasks relating to service 
charges. 

 
6.10.7 Some Shared Ownership units may be subject to estate charges which will still be in 

place should the Shared Owners purchase 100% of the property (referred to as 
‘staircasing out’). 

 
6.10.8 Where flats are offered for Shared Ownership the Council will set up a sinking fund for 

their long-term upkeep. Shared Owners will pay into the fund monthly from the start of 
the purchase until the property is sold. This ensures accurate assessment of sustained 
affordability when assessing buyers for shared ownership. The sinking fund will not be 
used within the first 10 years during the major repair free period. If the Shared Owner 
sells the flat, the value of the sinking fund remains with the property for the next owner. 

 
6.11 Building and Contents Insurance 

 
6.11.1 The Council will arrange suitable buildings insurance for the property. A copy of the 

relevant building insurance certificate confirming the sum for which the property is 
insured, the name of the insurer, and the risks covered in the policy will be provided to 
Shared Owners. 
 

6.11.2 The Shared Owner will be recharged the cost of obtaining the building insurance on a 
yearly basis in the form of a service charge. 

 
6.11.3  It is the Shared Owner’s sole responsibility to obtain and secure contents insurance for 

the property. The Shared Owner is not required to obtain contents insurance but, in 
any repair dispute the Council may request from the Shared Owner a copy of the 

Page 57



 

 

contents insurance policy documents or any other insurances relating to the property 
by giving 28 days’ notice in writing. 

 
 
6.12 Service charge disputes 

 
6.12.1 In the first instance the Council would aim to resolve any issues with service charges 

directly with the Shared Owner. The Shared Owner also has a statutory right to apply 
to the First Tier Tribunal to determine whether a service charge has been reasonably 
incurred and how much is payable. 

 
6.12.2 The Council will ensure that Shared Owners are made aware of their rights and the 

contact details for the tribunal. 
 
6.13 Rent payments 

 
6.13.1  Shared Owners are obliged to pay rent as part of their lease agreement on the first 

day of every month. Shared Owners will be expected to pay on time and in full unless 
they have contacted the Council and an agreement is in place. 

 
6.13.2 Rent must be paid by the Shared Owner by equal monthly payments. Payments should 

be made by direct debit. 
 
6.14 Rent and Service Charge Arrears 

 
6.14.1 The Council will help and support Shared Owners who are experiencing financial 

difficulty which affects their ability to pay rent or service charge. 
 

6.14.2  The Council will refer Shared Owners to relevant specialist advice and support with 
the permission of the Shared Owner. 

 
6.14.3  The Council will contact Shared Owners who fail to pay rent or service charge 

payments to discuss the circumstances and make a repayment agreement to clear the 
debt to the satisfaction of the Council. 

 
6.14.4  The Council will use a variety of methods of communication to ensure the Shared 

Owner is fully aware of their circumstances during any period they have rent or service 
charge arrears. 

 
6.14.5 Where arrears continue to accumulate the use of legal proceedings will be assessed 

and the lender must be informed when arrears exceed 2 months which is reciprocal if 
the same occurred with the Lender. The Council must agree to sign a mortgage 
undertaking in relation to arrears at exchange of contracts.  
 

6.14.6  Prior to commencement of legal proceedings, the Council will assess the financial 
viability of other  options, including whether the property satisfies the Councils current 
buy back scheme, or approaching the mortgage lender to consolidate the arrears onto 
the outstanding mortgage. 

 
6.14.7 As set out in the lease, the Council will provide the Shared Owner’s mortgage lender 

with 28 days’ notice of its intention to commence possession proceedings. This will 
include details of the level of arrears. 

 
6.14.8  Should the mortgage lender choose to repossess the property the Council will share 

all necessary information regarding the property and arrears payments. 
 
 

Page 58



 

 

6.15 Paying back equity stake 
 

6.15.1 If the Council must repossess a Shared Ownership property, a proportion of the equity 
stake will be returned to the outgoing Shared Owner minus the following costs: 

 

 The outstanding mortgage balance and any others costs due to the lender; 

 Any rent arrears/service charges outstanding; 

 Any legal costs incurred as a result of taking possession action; 

 Any costs incurred by the Council to carry out repairs or make good any damage to 

 the property that are not due to fair wear and tear; 

 Any costs associated with the sale of the property including any legal costs; 

 Any other costs not listed above incurred as a direct result of taking repossession 

 action; and 

 Any other sums due to the Council. 
 
6.15.2  If the Shared Owners equity stake is less than the costs incurred above the Shared 

Owner will owe the balance of the costs outstanding to the Council. 
 
6.15.3  If the Shared Owner is unable to settle this debt promptly the Council will take action 

to recover any monies outstanding from the Shared Owner. 
 
6.16 Production of accounts 

 
6.16.1 Lewisham Homes on behalf of the Council will maintain a property record for each 

Shared Ownership property. 
 

6.16.2 An account statement will be produced for each account and sent to the Shared Owner 
on an annual basis, or upon request at any other time. 

 
6.17 Repairs 

 
6.17.1 For new build properties the ten-year New Build Guarantee will apply. This covers 

essential repairs to the external fabric of the building and structural repairs to walls, 
floors, ceilings, and stairs inside of the home. In the first instance the Shared Owner 
will be expected to claim against this for any required repairs. 

 
6.17.2 Where the New Build Guarantee does not cover external fabric repairs the Council will 

undertake this work. 
 
6.17.3 For new build properties in the AHP 2021-26 programme. Shared Owners will also be 

able to apply to claim back £500 each year for some essential internal repairs from the 
Council. 

 
6.17.4 Essential internal repairs include: 

 installations for the supply of water; 

 installations for the supply of gas and electricity; 

 installations for sanitation (including basins, sinks, baths and sanitary conveniences, 
but not other fixtures, fittings and appliances for making use of the supply of water, 
gas or electricity) pipes and drainage; and 

 installations for space heating and heating water 
 
6.17.5 The claim period for claiming essential internal repair costs will run April to April. 
 
6.17.6 If the Shared Owner staircases to 100% within the first ten years, the responsibility for 

either internal or external repairs transfers from the Council to the owner. 

Page 59



 

 

 
6.17.7 After the ten-year repairs period, if the Shared Owner has not purchased all the equity 

shares (staircased out), they become responsible for all repairs and all costs 
associated with repairs. 

 
6.17.8 If the Shared Owner allows the property to fall into disrepair, this will be considered a 

breach of their lease. 
 

6.17.9 Should the property fall into disrepair, the Council may seek legal action to enforce the 
Shared Owner to carry out remedial works or for the Council to carry out the works and 
recharge the Shared Owner for the cost, including any legal costs incurred. 

 

6.18 Maintenance 
 

6.18.1 At all times, the Shared Owner will be solely responsible for the general maintenance 
of the property. In line with the lease, they must keep the property in good and 
substantial repair and condition. 
 

6.18.2 The Shared Owner will be responsible for arranging annual testing for all gas 
installations within the property. A copy of the gas service certificate must be provided 
to the Council within 28 days of the service being due. The Council can undertake this 
service upon request by the Shared Owner and the costs will be recharged to the 
Shared Owner. 
 

6.18.3 The Council will take legal action to gain entry to the property to carry out the required 
test where the Shared Owner fails to provide the certificate or have the safety check 
carried out. The cost of the service, and any legal costs incurred, will be recharged to 
the Shared Owner. 

 
6.19 Alterations and improvements 

 
6.19.1 Shared Owners wishing to make alterations and or improvements to the property will 

need prior written permission from the Council. Requests will need to be made in 
writing and include full details of the proposed works. The Council reserve the right to 
monitor work where any major structural works are requested. Lewisham Homes on 
behalf of the Council will keep a record of improvements which will be signed off by the 
Building Safety Manager and adopted into the Building Safety File. 

 
6.19.2 Where the work of professional tradespersons are required for example but not limited 

to; gas works or electrical works, a certificate verifying the work carried out must be 
provided to the Council within 28 days of the work being completed. 

 
6.19.3 For larger pieces of work such as but not limited to; changing the fabric or structure of 

the building, The Council may provide a list of conditions which will need to be met by 
the Shared Owner for the permission to remain valid. This may include but not limited 
to; obtaining planning permission or building regulations consent and sign off. 

 
6.19.4  The Council reserves the right to inspect any alterations and improvements once 

completed by arranging a mutually convenient appointment with the Shared Owner. 
 

6.19.5  Where unauthorised alterations or improvements have been carried out, the Council 
may request the Shared Owner to reinstate the work. Where work causes damage to 
the building, building safety and the enjoyment to other residents the Shared Owner 
would be liable for repair cost – significant costs if the building had communal heating 
and hot water systems.  Should the Shared Owner fail to make good the works, the 

Page 60



 

 

Council may take legal action to carry out the necessary work and recharge the Shared 
Owner for the cost, including any legal costs incurred as a result. 

 
6.19.6 The Council will not withhold consent for an improvement unreasonably. In normal 

circumstances permission will only be withheld for the following reasons: 
 

 The requested work would result in the property devaluing in price; 

 The requested work would cause a nuisance or annoyance to neighbouring 
properties;  

 The requested work would impact on overall building safety; or, 

 The Shared Owner is in rent arrears or a Court Order is pending or in force, in 
relation to possession action. 

 
6.19.7  Any refusal of the proposed alteration or improvement will be accompanied with a full 

written explanation. There is no appeals process. The terms of the lease will be 
referred to on all occasions. 

 
6.20 Other lease management issues 

 
6.20.1 The Council will take appropriate action whenever it becomes aware that a Shared 

Owner is acting in breach of the terms of the lease which may include: 
 

 Non-payment of rental income; 

 Unapproved works to the property; 

 Improper use of the home or building; 

 Failure to maintain or damage to the property; 

 Refusal of access to Council staff and or its contractors or agents; 

 Anti-social behaviour by the Shared Owner, their household members or visitors that 
causes a nuisance, alarm, or distress to other residents in the vicinity of the 
property, including but not limited to: 
- Intimidation of neighbours and others through threats or actual violence 
- Harassment, including racial harassment 
- Verbal abuse 
- Homophobic behaviour 
- Noise 
- Dumping rubbish 
- Pets will be permitted  but animal nuisance, including dog fouling, will constitute 

a breach of the lease arrangements 
- Vandalism, property damage and graffiti 
 

 
6.20.2 The Council will work with the Shared Owner and other relevant services or agencies 

to resolve any issues. Should the breach continue, the Council will consider taking 
legal action which could include seeking an injunction, or action for the forfeiture 
(termination) of their lease. 

 
6.21 Subletting 

 
6.21.1  Subletting is prohibited. 

 
6.21.2 In exceptional circumstances the Council may grant permission for a Shared Owner to 

sublet, for example, for Ministry of Defence personnel who are posted away from the 
property. In all cases, sub-letting must be approved by the Council in writing for a 
maximum of 6 months. The Shared Owner should not profit from the let if approved. 

 
6.22 After-sales 

Page 61



 

 

 
6.22.1 Lewisham Homes will be responsible for dealing with all after-sales transactions, 

including stair-casing and re-sales. Shared Owners will be responsible for paying fees 
associated with Land Registry registration, the payment of stamp duty land tax and 
legal fees. 

 
6.23 Stair-casing 

 
6.23.1  Shared Owners can apply to increase the share that they own at any time during the 

term of the Shared Ownership lease. Shared Owners who buy propertiesoutside the 
AHP 2021-26 programme will be able to buy a further minimum 5% stake each year.  
 

6.23.2 Shared Owners in the AHP 2021-26 programme will be able to buy a further minimum 
1% stake each year for 15 years, without the need for a RICS valuation; the Council 
will not charge an admin fee for this. At any time, the leaseholder can buy a larger 
stake. 

 
6.23.3  After 15 years,the stake will be 5% or more and will include a RICS qualified surveyor 

carrying out a valuation and will be subject to an administration fee. 
 
6.24 Downward stair-casing 

 
6.24.1 Downward stair-casing involves the Council repurchasing some of the equity from the 

existing Shared Owner, who will remain living in the property owning a smaller share of 
it. 
 

6.24.2 Downward stair-casing will be considered at the discretion of the Council in exceptional 
circumstances such as where the Shared Owner is at risk of repossession or falling 
into arrears and where no alternative solution can be found. 

 
6.24.3 Shared Owners will be required to maintain a minimum share of 10% in order that the 

property is preserved for Shared Ownership 
 
6.25 Re-sales 
 
6.25.1 Shared Owners are required to notify the Council if they intend to sell the property. 

Lewisham Council will then appoint an independent RICS qualified surveyor within 14 
days to establish the market value of the property. 

 
6.25.2 Under the terms of the lease, the Council has four weeks from notification that the 

Shared Owner wishes to sell to nominate a purchaser who is eligible under the Shared 
Ownership guidance. 

 
6.25.3 If the Council is unable to nominate a buyer within the nomination period within the 

lease, or a purchaser is nominated but fails to exchange contracts within 12 weeks, the 
Shared Owner is entitled to advertise their property on a Shared Ownership basis on 
the open market. 

 
6.25.4 Re-sale applicants must still meet the eligibility criteria of this Policy 
 
6.25.5 Re-sale applicants will be required to purchase a share equal to or higher than that 

purchased by the current Shared Owner. For clarity this includes the intial stake 
purchased and any staircasing since.  

 
6.26 Leasehold repurchase 
 

Page 62



 

 

6.26.1 Shared Owners can request that the Council purchases their entire share of the 
property. Such requests will be considered in exceptional circumstances where the 
Shared Owner is able to demonstrate a genuine need, including but not limited to 
financial hardship, to move and all other alternatives have been exhausted. The 
Council will consider repurchase requests on a case by case basis and will provide a 
determination within 28 days of receipt of written notice of a Shared Owner’s intention 
to sell. 

 
6.27 Re-mortgaging and additional borrowing 
 
6.27.1 Shared Owner’s may request to increase the borrowing secured against their share of 

the property subject to the Council’s approval. 
 
6.27.2 The Council will consider such requests only where the funds are to be used to: 

 Enable the purchase of further shares (stair-casing); 

 Enable the Shared Owner to comply with the terms of the lease, for example, to 

 carry out essential repairs; or 

 Allow one Shared Owner to buy out another Shared Owner’s interest in the property. 
 
6.27.3  Consent will only be given for essential repairs and maintenance. The Council will not 

permit additional lending for home improvements. As an example, the replacement of a 
boiler or repairing the roof would be permitted; further borrowing for the addition of a 
conservatory would not be approved. 

 
 
6.28 Involvement and consultation 

 
6.28.1 The Council will provide appropriate opportunities for Shared Owners to influence the 

quality, cost and efficiency of the services they receive. This will include consultation 
on policies and procedures that affect the Shared Ownership service offered. 

 
6.28.2 Where qualifying works or a long-term agreement is required for the property, the 

Council will consult with Shared Owners in line with its statutory obligations. 
  

7. Resident consultation and engagement  

7.1 As part of the constituent planning applications on the schemes containing shared 
ownership consultation and information will be given to residents and local stakeholders 
which will include public exhibitions, drop in sessions and Section 105 consultations.  

8. Financial implications  

8.1 This report seeks approval for a number of proposals related to the authority becoming a 
provider of Shared Ownership homes, the introduction of a Shared Ownership Policy and 
the approval of marketing, sale and management arrangements/agreements for Shared 
Ownership properties with Lewisham Homes.  
 

8.2 The delivery of the Shared Ownership Units within the BfL programme will include applying 
GLA AHP 2021-2026 grant to the Shared Ownership units. Right to Buy Receipts will be 
applied, where GLA funding is unavailable. The total number of Shared Ownership Units 
outlined in paragraph 4.3 is 294 of which 171 units on Achilles Street and Thomas Lane 
have attracted GLA funding. It is expected that the remaining 123 units will attract RTB 
funding if no further GLA funding is secured. The total number of Shared Units within the 
programme is 328 which is approximately 22.8% of the BfL programme. 
 

8.3 The report seeks further approval for delegated powers to the Executive Director for 

Page 63



 

 

Housing, Regeneration and Public Realm to agree a variation to the Management 
Agreement with Lewisham Homes where the Council is freeholder and Lewisham Homes 
shall be sales agent for the shared ownership units. 
 

8.4 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report in seeking approval for a 
Shared Ownership Policy or for agreements for a variation to the Management Agreement 
with Lewisham Homes to market, sell and manage the units once they have been 
delivered by the Building for Lewisham Programme. 

8.5 Detailed financial implications and risks will be included as each individual project, which 
includes shared ownership units are brought forward to Mayor and Cabinet for approval. 
These detailed considerations will include; 

 Enure Optimix project assessment have been completed and confirmation that 
financial hurdles have been met and agreed; 

 Ensure Optimix overall scheme consolidations are within the approved financial limits 
for the programme as a whole;  

 Ensure compliance with grant conditions (GLA, RTB or other) to enable a claim to be 
made and accepted; 

 Ensure that costs associated to the ongoing maintenance, management and future 
investment needs of the Shared Ownership units are recoverable and included in either 
the rent or service charge element; 

 Ensure that the sales and marketing costs are identified and included within the project 
assessment and are set-aside and available within the revenue stream; 

 Assessment of the suitability of Shared Ownership within the individual projects 
feasibility with reference to location and demand for these type of units within the 
location; 

 Accounting treatment of the share of the units which remain with the council and 
included as part of the overall HRA stock; and 

 Accounting treatment of reservation fees and final sales income. 

9. Legal implications 

9.1. Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 grants Councils a general power of competence 
whereby a local authority has power to do anything which individuals generally may do. 
However, that power does not enable a local authority to do anything which it is unable 
to do by virtue of a pre-commencement limitation. Section 32 of the Housing Act 1985 
is a pre-commencement statute which imposes limitations on the Council’s power of 
disposal. 

9.2. Any disposal of land held for housing purposes under Part II of the Housing Act 1985 
can only proceed in accordance with section 32 of the Housing Act 1985, for which 
purposes the consent of the Secretary of State for the Department of Communities and 
Local Government is required. A number of general consents have been issued under 
the General Housing Consents 2013. Under General Consent A3.1.1, a local authority 
may dispose of land for a consideration equal to its market value. For this purpose, 
disposal includes the grant of a shared ownership lease. Accordingly, a RICS valuation 
will be required for each shared ownership disposal to ensure the Council will be 
receiving market value. In the event that any disposal takes place from the General 
Fund in which case the power to dispose is governed by Section 123 of the Local 
Government Act 1972, an authority may dispose of a dwelling-house to an individual or 
individuals if it could make the disposal under The General Consent for the Disposal of 
Land held for the Purposes of Part II of the Housing Act 1985- 2013 were the dwelling-
house and the authority ones to which the consent applied. Accordingly the position is 

Page 64



 

 

the same for all disposals. The General Consents also stipulate what additional 
provisions may be included in shared ownership leases. For example, provisions 
excluding sub-letting and a right of pre-emption (first refusal). 

9.3. This report proposes that the existing management agreement with Lewisham Homes 
is varied to include the appointment of Lewisham Homes as the Council’s sales and 
marketing agent for all the Council’s Shared Ownership Homes and to provide all 
necessary management services in connection with those units. The terms of the 
appointment will be agreed under the authority delegated by this report. 

9.4. As Lewisham Homes is a wholly owned company, the Teckal exemption will apply and 
it will be permissible under the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 for the Council to 
award the contract to LHL for the proposed appointment without undertaking a tender 
exercise. 

9.5. The variation is not one which requires Secretary of State’s approval under Section 27 
of the Housing Act 1985. 

9.6. In taking this decision, the Council’s public sector equality duty must be taken into 
account.  It covers the following protected characteristics: age, disability, gender 
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion 
or belief, sex and sexual orientation. 

9.7. In summary, the Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the 
need to: eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other 
conduct prohibited by the Act; advance equality of opportunity between people who 
share a protected characteristic and those who do not; foster good relations between 
people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not. 

9.8. It is not an absolute requirement to eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, 
victimisation or other prohibited conduct, or to promote equality of opportunity or foster 
good relations between persons who share a protected characteristic and those who 
do not. It is a duty to have due regard to the need to achieve the goals listed above.  
The weight to be attached to the duty will be dependent on the nature of the decision 
and the circumstances in which it is made bearing in mind the issues of relevance and 
proportionality and understanding the impact or likely impact of the decision on those 
with protected characteristics who are potentially affected by the decision. The extent 
of the duty will necessarily vary from case to case and due regard is such regard as is 
appropriate in all the circumstances. 

9.9. The Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) has issued Technical Guidance 
on the Public Sector Equality Duty and statutory guidance. The Council must have 
regard to the statutory code in so far as it relates to the duty. The Technical Guidance 
also covers what public authorities should do to meet the duty. This includes steps that 
are legally required, as well as recommended actions. The guidance does not have 
statutory force but nonetheless regard should be had to it, as failure to do so without 
compelling reason would be of evidential value. The statutory code and the technical 
guidance can be found on the EHRC website. 

9.10 The EHRC has issued five guides for public authorities in England giving advice on the 
equality duty. The ‘Essential’ guide provides an overview of the equality duty 
requirements including the general equality duty, the specific duties and who they apply 
to. It covers what public authorities should do to meet the duty including steps that are 
legally required, as well as recommended actions. The other four documents provide 
more detailed guidance on key areas and advice on good practice.  

10. Equalities implications 

10.1  An Equalities Impact Assessment has been completed in relation to the proposed 
Shared Ownership policy and is attached at Appendix 1 in full. 

Page 65



 

 

11. Climate change and environmental implications 

11.1 Existing planning consents are and will be in line with the high standards expected by 
Lewisham Council and the GLA. Developments will meet or exceed guidance including 
seeking to reduce energy consumption, emissions, and climate change. 

11.2 Every effort will be made to enhance the natural environment. This will include 
undertaking demolition and construction works in line with environmental protection 
and public health guidelines and seek to limit the impact on neighbours.  

12. Crime and disorder implications 

12.1 There are no crime and disorder implications arising from this report. 

13. Health and wellbeing implications  

13.1 There are no direct health and wellbeing implications arising from this report although 
the provision of new social homes will have a positive impact on health and wellbeing 
of people on the housing register waiting for permanent accommodation. 

 

14. Social Value implications  

14.1 As part of the development, the Council seeks to deliver wider benefits to local 
residents and businesses by setting targets on employment and training opportunities 
for Lewisham residents as well as using Lewisham businesses. 

14.2 Lewisham Homes, the main contractor, setting out their commitments to deliver on the 
social value aspects of the scheme. This is monitored by officers throughout the build 
period to maximise the opportunity for Lewisham residents and businesses. 

15. Background papers 

15.1 More information on the previous Mayor and Cabinet reports are available on the 
Council’s website at https://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/ 

16. Glossary  

16.1. Definitions for the purposes of this Report 

Term Definition 

Equity Stake 
 

The percentage of the property owned by the Shared Owner. 

Greater London Authority 
 

The non-departmental public body that provides grant funding 
for new affordable housing in England. Grant-funded Shared 
Ownership schemes must be managed in line with the HE 
guidelines which are set out in the Capital Funding Guide 
England. 

Housing Register 
 

The system used by the Council to prioritise applicants for 
social housing based on housing need. 

Lease 

 

The legal agreement that sets out the rights and 
responsibilities of both the Shared Owner and the Registered 
Provider. The lease is granted for a fixed term; however, it is 
possible for the Shared Owner to extend this lease. 

Page 66

https://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/


 

 

Term Definition 

Leaseholder 
 

A person with an interest in a property granted by a lease 
which gives them the right to occupy the property for a fixed 
period. 

Lender 
 

The Bank or Building Society who provide the loan to the 
Shared Owner to purchase their share of the property. 

Market Value 
 

The price that the leasehold interest in the property would 
fetch if sold on the open market by a willing seller, upon the 
terms and conditions of the Shared Ownership lease and on 
the assumption the leaseholder would acquire a 100% interest 
in the lease. 

Ministry of Defence 
Personnel 
 

 They have completed their basic (phase 1) training and 
they are one of the following: 

 Regular service personnel (including Navy, Army and Air 
Force) 

 Clinical staff (with the exception of doctors and dentists) 

 Ministry of Defence Police Officers 

 Uniformed staff in the Defence Fire Service 

 They are ex-regular service personnel who have served 
in the Armed Forces for a minimum of six years, and can 
produce a Discharge Certificate (or similar 
documentation) as proof, where they apply within two 
years (24 months) of the date of discharge from service 
or 

 They are the surviving partners of regular service 
personnel who have died in service, where they apply 
within two years (24 months) of the date of being 
bereaved.  

Rent 
 

A monthly amount charged by the Registered Provider that is 
based on the unsold share of the property. The Shared Owner 
is required to pay the rent to the Registered Provider/ The 
Council under the terms of the lease. 

Retail Price Index (RPI) 
 

A measure of inflation published monthly by the Office for 
National Statistics that represents the change in the cost of a 
representative sample of retail goods and services. 

Service Charge 

A monthly amount charged by the Registered Provider to 
recover the cost of providing services, such as maintaining 
communal parts of a scheme, providing buildings insurance 
and administration costs. The Shared Owner is required to 
pay the service charge to the Registered Provider under the 
terms of the lease. 
 

Shared Owner 
 

The occupier of a property who owns part of the property and 
pays rent on the remaining share is the Leaseholder of the 
property. 

Shared Ownership 
 

A low cost home ownership scheme which enables a buyer to 
purchase a share of their home (initially between 25% and 
75%) and pay rent on the remainder to a Registered Provider. 
 
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/capital-funding-guide/1-help-to-
buy-shared-ownership. 
 

Page 67



 

 

Term Definition 

Stair-casing 
 

The process of acquiring additional shares in a Shared 
Ownership home 

The Council 
 

London Borough of Lewisham 

 

17. Report author and contact 

17.1. Fred Nugent - Principal Development & Land Manager 

020 8314 7944 - fred.nugent@lewisham.org.uk 

17.2. Comments for and on behalf of the Executive Director for Corporate Resources 

Tony Riordan– Business Partner Financial Services  

020 8314 6854. tony.riordan@lewisham.gov.uk 

17.3. Comments for and on behalf of the Director of Law, Governance and HR 

Katherine Kazantzis - Principal Lawyer 

0208 314 7937 - katherine.kazantzis@lewisham.gov.uk 
 
 
Appendix 1 - Equalities Impact Assessment for Shared Ownership Policy 

Page 68

mailto:fred.nugent@lewisham.org.uk
mailto:tony.riordan@lewisham.gov.uk
mailto:katherine.kazantzis@lewisham.gov.uk


Equality Impact Assessment 

Table 1 

Author Dawn Eckersley  Directorate Housing 

Date 06/10/21 Service Housing 

1. The project or decision that this assessment is being undertaken for 
 
Shared Ownership Policy 

Lewisham Council has developed a Shared Ownership Policy to determine which applicants should be 
prioritised for shared ownership properties in the borough, developed by Lewisham Council.   

Shared ownership is where an organisation owns the freehold or main lease of a property and sells a 
share to the person who lives in the property. The occupier can then buy additional shares (known as 
staircasing) at any point until they eventually own the whole property. Rent is paid on the unsold equity (the 
part of the property that the Council still owns). There is no obligation for an occupier to staircase if they do 
not want to. 

There are a range of eligibility criteria set out in Greater London Authority Capital Funding Guide that the 
policy adheres to: 

 The maximum household income is £90,000 to be eligible to purchase a property under this policy 

 Applicants must be unable to purchase a property on the open market 

 Applicants must be able to afford their purchase and sustain their housing costs 

 Be first time buyers, other than exceptions outlined in paragraph 3.2.3 of the policy 

 Be British citizens or EEA citizens or have indefinite leave to remain.  

Under the Capital Funding Guide, Lewisham Council is able to prioritise individuals with specific (non-
protected) characteristics to increase their chances of successfully purchasing a shared ownership 
property. 

If the buyer meets the criteria set out above, then the order of prioritisation is: 

1. Armed Forces personnel – if you are serving or have left the Armed Forces within the last five years, or 
if you are required to leave your property after your partner has died through service, in accordance with 
the Armed Forces Covenant for Lewisham.  

2. Lewisham Council social housing tenants. 
3. Lewisham residents on the Housing Register. 
4. Current Lewisham residents. 
5. People who work in the borough. 
6. People living or working in another London borough. 

 
 

 

2. The protected characteristics or other equalities factors potentially impacted by this 
decision  

☒ Age ☐ Race ☒ Maternity and 

pregnancy 

☒ Marriage and civil 

partnership 

☒Other, 

Gypsies and 
traveller ☐ Gender ☐ Gender 

reassignment  
☒ Disability  

☒ Religion or 

belief 
☒ Carer status ☐ Sexual orientation  

 

3. The evidence to support the analysis 
The key data used for this assessment is: 
 

 ONS data on Lewisham. 
 
 
 Page 69



 Lewisham Housing Register data the service-user profile – i.e. those applying for social housing. 
Much of this information is provided as part of a housing application and has been sourced from 
the in-house system.  

 
With regards to Lewisham Housing Register data, applicants, are not required to enter data on protected 
characteristics in their service-user profile. Therefore the council has limited data on the protected 
characteristics of applicants, so we are unable to provide a detailed assessment of the impact of re-
allocating groups, or forecast the impact with a significant degree of confidence.  
 
It should be noted that the housing service has recently implemented a new integrated housing system. In 
time, and with a re-registration process proposed as part of the policy review, our data quality should 
improve over time. 
 
 

The analysis  
Age 

 
 

 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 The most represented age bracket in the social housing register is 41-50 

 The general age range for shared ownership is 28-42 so this affordable home ownership product 
offers an alternative to people outside this demographic 
 

 
Ethnicity 

Housing register  
Ethnicity % 

(blank) 70.3% 

English/Welsh/Scottish/Northern Irish/British 8.0% 

African 6.0% 

Caribbean 5.6% 

Not disclosed 2.2% 

Any other White background 2.0% 

Any other Black/ African/ Caribbean 
background 1.2% 

Any other ethnic group 1.2% 

White and Black Caribbean 0.8% 

Any other Asian background 0.8% 

Any other mixed/ multiple ethnic background 0.5% 

Chinese 0.4% 

Irish 0.3% 

White and Black African 0.2% 

Indian 0.2% 

Bangladeshi 0.2% 

Pakistani 0.2% 

White and Asian 0.1% 

Housing 
register 
Age band % 

 18-25 5% 

26-35 22% 

36-40 16% 

41-50 27% 

51-60 18% 

61+ 12% 

Grand Total 100.00% 

Page 70



Arab 0.0% 

Grand Total 100.00% 

 
 

 The data regarding the ethnicity of applicants on the general Housing Register is limited, with more 
than 70% of those not disclosing their ethnicity. Most applications to the general Housing Register 
are made online so a large number of applicants are choosing not to disclose this data. 

 
Maternity 

 A small number of applicants on the Housing Register (less than 2%) are listed as pregnant. 
  
 
Gender 

 Almost a quarter of applicants on the Housing Register are female. This is most likely because 
there are more single women with dependent children accepted onto the register (as dependent 
children is indicative of a priority need). 

 
Gender identity 

 1.48% of applicants on the Housing Register have identified as transgender 

 There is no data for gender identity within homeless applicants. 
 
Disability 

 Over 16% of applicants on the Housing Register have declared a disability. 

 As at August 2020, there were 149 households on the Housing Register awaiting accessible social 
housing. 109 of these households were already in social housing not currently suitable for their 
needs. At least 15 were in temporary accommodation. 

 Less than 1% of homelessness applicants in the extract declared a disability; however this relates 
to lead applicant only. 

 
Household type 
 

 Household type is not collected in Housing Register data; however the minimum number of 
bedrooms required gives us an idea of the sizes of the households. Almost three quarters of 
households waiting for social housing need a minimum of 2 or 3 bedrooms. 69.6% of residents in 
LB Lewisham looking for shared ownership are looking for a 1 or 2 bed property (SharetoBuy.com) 

 As expected, larger households are more likely to be affected by overcrowding. 635 households 
within the Council’s own stock (Lewisham Homes) are overcrowded by more than one bedroom. 
Almost three quarters of these households have 5 or more occupants, suggestive of families with 
more children or multi-generational households. 

 812 households within our own stock are overcrowded by 0.5-1 bedroom. Almost half of this cohort 
are a household of 6 occupants. 

 According to the 2014-based CLG household projections, the number of households with children 
is expected to increase by around 6,300 over the period 2018–2033. 

 
 
Religion 

Religion % 

Not disclosed 58.33% 

Christian (all denominations) 23.93% 

None 9.82% 

Muslim 5.43% 

Any other religion/belief 0.82% 

Prefer not to say 0.74% 

Buddhist 0.45% 

Hindu 0.41% 

Sikh 0.03% 

Jewish 0.03% Page 71



Grand Total 
100.00

% 

 

 Over 50% of Housing Register applicants have not disclosed a religion. 

 Out of the remaining applicants, almost a quarter have identified as Christian. The next most 
prevalent declaration is ‘no religion’, followed by Muslim. 

 When looking at households on the register that are overcrowded by 2 bedrooms or more, those 
who are Muslim are overrepresented (almost 14% even though they account for only 5.4% of the 
overall register), suggesting that any changes to policy relating to overcrowding may have a 
disproportionate impact on this group. 

 Religion data is not available for over 75% of Lewisham Homes tenants. 
 
Carer status 

 There is no data for carers within the housing register or homelessness applications. 
 
 
Sexual orientation 

 Over half of applicants on the housing register have not disclosed their sexual orientation. 

 44% have identified as straight / heterosexual. 

 Less than 1% have identified as gay, lesbian, bisexual or other. 
 
 
Income 

 By definition, all applicants on the Housing Register are on low incomes and / or in receipt of 
Housing Benefit or Universal Credit.  

 
 

 

4. Impact summary 
 
In summary the Shared Ownership Policy does not unfairly discriminate against or disadvantage 
individuals or households with protected characteristics. The Policy has been drafted to ensure access to 
this affordable home product is prioritised for those with the greatest need, ability to fund the purchase and 
local connection to the borough.  
 
 

5. Mitigation 
 
No mitigation is necessary. 
 

6. Service user journey that this decision or project impacts 
 
Based on the Share to Buy database of people looking to buy a shared ownership property who live in LB 
Lewisham: there are 1386 residents (56.5%) living in private rented, 703 residents (28.6%) living with 
family/friends & 293 residents (12%) in socially rented accommodation.  
Registration for shared ownership homes with LB Lewisham will be through the Lewisham Homes sales 
website. 
Shared ownership - Lewisham Homes 
 
If you think you may become homeless, you should contact the Council for advice at the earliest 
opportunity. The earlier you contact us the more chance we have of helping you to avoid becoming 
homeless. You can call the Housing Options Centre [HOC] on 020 8314 7007 or e-mail HOC at 
HousingOptionsEnquiry@lewisham.gov.uk. 
 
If you want to join the housing list you can do this by referring to our information on the website 
www.lewisham.gov.uk or http://www.lewisham.gov.uk/myservices/housing/find/Pages/Apply-for-social-
housing.aspx.  
 
For advice about your housing options, please contact the Allocations and Lettings Service on 020 8314 
7007 or LewishamFindYourHomeApplications@lewisham.gov.uk. Page 72

https://www.lewishamhomes.org.uk/new-homes/shared-ownership/
mailto:HousingOptionsEnquiry@lewisham.gov.uk
http://www.lewisham.gov.uk/
http://www.lewisham.gov.uk/myservices/housing/find/Pages/Apply-for-social-housing.aspx
http://www.lewisham.gov.uk/myservices/housing/find/Pages/Apply-for-social-housing.aspx
mailto:LewishamFindYourHomeApplications@lewisham.gov.uk


 
If you are vulnerable (for example you are elderly, have learning or other disability, or do not have the 
ability to read English or another language) we can assist you in accessing housing and bidding for 
properties. The Homesearch Support Officer, based in the Allocations and Lettings Service, assists 
applicants to engage with the choice based lettings system and can assist clients with bidding. Please 
contact the Allocations and Lettings Service for further information on 020 8314 7007 or 
LewishamFindYourHomeApplications@lewisham.gov.uk. 
 
Single Homelessness Intervention and Prevention (SHIP): The Council is committed to working with 
partner agencies to promote housing options for single young people and there are a number of supported 
housing schemes that may be suitable for your needs funded throughout the borough. For more 
information on how to access these schemes please contact the SHIP service at SHIP@lewisham.gov.uk 
or 020 8314 7007. 
 
 

Signature of 
Head of Service 

   
Dawn Eckersley 
Head of Housing Partnerships and Service Improvement  

 

For further information please see the full Corporate Equality Policy.  

 

Page 73

mailto:LewishamFindYourHomeApplications@lewisham.gov.uk
https://lewishamcouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/Intranet/Intranet%20documents/CorporateEqualityPolicy.docx?d=w6e8d9e21a0384ea1aec2e1882f54e8e8


 

P
age 74



 

 

Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel 

 

1. Summary 

1.1. The intention of this item is to provide Members with an update on current scrutiny 
activity. 

2. Recommendation 

2.1. Members are asked to disuss and note any information provided. 

3. Scrutiny Update 

3.1 The third round of Select Committee meetings is currently taking place: 

 Healthier Communities – 2 November 

 Safer Stronger Communities – 4 November 

 Housing – 18 November (may be moved to 9 December) 

 Sustainable Development – 23 November 

 Children and Young People – 25 November 

 Public Accounts – 1 December 

 
3.2 Select Committee Chairs are invited to provide an update on any scrutiny activity 

related to their committee that they wish to bring to the Panel’s attention.  
 

Scrutiny Update 

Date: 16 November 2021 

Key decision: No  

Class: Part 1  

Ward(s) affected: All 

Contributors: Assistant Chief Executive (Head of Overview and Scrutiny) 

Outline and recommendations 

The purpose of this item is for Members to receive an update from Select Committee 
Chairs on any scrutiny activity related to their Committee that they wish to bring to the 

Panel’s attention. The Head of Overview and Scrutiny may also provide an update if the 
Select Committees have met since the last Business Panel meeting.  

Page 75

Agenda Item 5



  

3.3 The work programmes for each Select Committee are atatched at Appendix A. 
 

3.4 The next meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will take place on 30 
November. The main item of business will be a report on the climate emergency and 
the Future Lewisham theme “A Greener Future”. This work is being led by Councillors 
Krupski and Penfold. There will also be an update on the implementation of the 
recommendations made at the last meeting, concerning the resident experience 
programme. 

 
3.5 At the meeting of the full Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on the rising of the 

Council AGM on 26 May 2021, three time limited task and finish groups (TFGs) were 
established to look at: 

 

 Improving digital inclusion for Lewisham residents with a learning disability to 
improve quality of life 

 Improving Wi-Fi access and connectivity to improve educational outcomes for 
Lewisham’s pupils, particularly those most in need 

 Retrofitting and insulating homes in Lewisham to achieve climate change 
targets.  

 

3.6 The TFGs have all held their first formal meetings and are now actively undertaking 
their investigations. This way of carrying out in-depth scrutiny is significantly different to 
doing in-depth reviews at committee. It is more collaborative and more intensive with a 
large number of different evidence sessions taking place, including some during the 
day. However, all the informal sessions that take place in relation to each investigation 
are optional for Members to attend and the scrutiny managers supporting each group 
produce summaries of all the evidence taken for those unable to attend. Each group 
will also have a mid-way meeting where all Members can catch up on the work that has 
been completed so far and feed into plans for the solutions stage. It is envisgaed that 
the TFGs will complete their work by no later than the end of February 2022. The 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee will consider the response to any recommendations 
made by the groups and consider whether any follow up work / progress updates on 
recommendation implementation are required. 

4 Financial implications  

4.1 Scrutiny work is managed within existing budgets. Formal recommendations to the 
Mayor arising out of any specific work items within select committee work programmes 
or considered by TFGs are evaluated in the usual way through the process of formal 
reports. There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 

5 Legal implications 

5.1 There are no direct legal implications arising from this report.  

6 Equalities implications 

6.1 The Equality Act 2010 (The Act) legally protects people from discrimination in the 
workplace and in wider society. It replaced the previous anti-discrimination laws with a 
single act, making the law easier to understand and strengthen protection in certain 
situations. It covers the following nine protected characteristics: age, disability, gender 
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion 
or belief, sex and sexual orientation. 
 

6.2 The Act also imposes a public sector equality duty. This means that in public bodies, of 
which this Council is designated, they must consider all individuals in carrying out their 
day-to-day work when shaping policy, in delivering services and in relation to their own 
employees. It also requires public bodies to: 

Page 76

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/15/contents


  

 
- Have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination 
- Advance equality of opportunity 
- Foster good relations between different people when carrying out their activities 
 

6.3 The Council recognises diversity is one of its strengths and is committed to creating a 
more inclusive community. Therefore, having due regard to the Act, is confirmation of 
the Council’s commitment to eliminating all forms of discrimination against any group 
within the community and to actively promote an equality of opportunity and positive 
community partnership.  
 

6.4 The delivery of the Council’s equalities objectives is to be achieved through the delivery 
of all of the Council’s strategies, plans and procedures. As such, all select committees 
and other scrutiny bodies, when planning their work and scrutinising items, bear in 
mind the delivery of the Council’s equality objectives. 
 

6.5 Scrutiny tries to make sure that its work reflects the diversity of Lewisham’s 
communities and that the views of residents are fairly represented in scrutiny 
processes. Any recommendations arising from scrutiny work support the Council’s 
corporate strategy and reflect the needs of local residents. 

7 Climate change and environmental implications 

7.1 There are no direct climate change or environmental implications arising from this 
report.  

8 Crime and disorder implications 

8.1 There are no direct crime and disorder implications arising from this report.  

9 Health and wellbeing implications  

9.1 There are no direct health and wellbeing implications arising from this report.  

10 Glossary  

Term Definition 

Overview & Scrutiny  
 

Overview and scrutiny is the way in which Mayor and Cabinet 
(the ‘Executive’), officers and external organisations are held 
to account for the decisions that they make. It is led by 
councillors who are not members of the Executive. They also 
influence policy development and investigate issues of local 
concern, making recommendations for improvement.  
 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

A committee made up of all non-executive councillors which 
carries out scrutiny focussing on strategic and cross cutting 
issues. 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Business 
Panel (OSBP) and Education 
OSBP 

Lewisham has two Business Panels (sub-committees of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee).  
 
OS Business Panel is made up of the chair and vice-chair of 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, the chair of each of the 
Select Committees, and two other non-Executive councillors.  
 
The main functions of Business Panel are reviewing key 
decisions once they have been taken (potentially “calling in” 
key decisions that have been made but not yet implemented); 

Page 77



  

coordinating and approving the overall scrutiny work 
programme; and allocating scrutiny work in the event that it 
crosses the remit of more than one scrutiny body.  
 
Three parent governors and two diocesan representatives sit 
on the Education Business Panel, alongside the councillors 
that make up the regular Business Panel. The Education 
Business Panel reviews (and can call-in) key decisions that 
are education matters.  

Select Committee Lewisham has six Select Committees (sub-committees of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee), each made up of non-
Executive councillors and responsible for scrutinising a 
specific service area.  Select Committees gather evidence to 
help them review policies and performance and make 
recommendations to improve outcomes for residents. 
 

Select Committee Work 
Programmes 

The annual programme of work setting out the matters which 
each select committee will scrutinise over the year. 

Task and Finish Group (TFG) A time limited scrutiny body which gathers evidence in relation 
to a topical issue of concern in order to make 
recommendations to improve outcomes for residents. 

11 Report author and contact 

11.1 Charlotte Dale, Head of Overview and Scrutiny, 0208 31 48286, 
charlotte.dale@lewisham.gov.uk 

 

Page 78

mailto:charlotte.dale@lewisham.gov.uk


Children and Young People Select Committee work programme 2021-22

Work Item Type of item

Strategic 

Priority 17-Jun 22-Sep 25-Nov 26-Jan 16-Mar

Election of the Chair and Vice-Chair Constitutional requirement

Select Committee work programme 2021/22 Constitutional requirement CP3

Children and Young People's wellbeing and mental 

health: status and trends 
standard item CP3 & CP5

Early Help review progress report policy development CP3 & CP5

Financial stabilisation - budget update and medium term 

plan
performance monitoring All

Children's Social Care Placements - cost and quality performance monitoring CP3&5

Elective Home Education standard item CP3 & CP5

School places planning and children going out of borough standard item CP3 & CP5

Apprenticeships standard item CP3 & CP4

Play Strategy policy development CP3 & CP5

Budget cut proposals standard item All

Embedding race equality in Lewisham's schools - to 

include data on exclusions, alternative provision  

attainment

performance monitoring CP3 & CP5

Safeguarding - Ofsted Improvement Plan performance monitoring CP3 & CP5

Information Items, events and visits

Young Mayor and Advisors informal meeting CP3 & CP5

Annual school standards report performance monitoring CP3  

Play strategy update policy development CP3 & CP5

Annual report on attendance and exclusions performance monitoring CP3  

Corporate Parenting and Looked After Children annual 

report
performance monitoring CP3 & CP5

Safeguarding annual report (formerly LSCB) Performance Monitoring CP3 & CP5

Item completed

Item on-going

Item outstanding CP6  Making Lewisham greener

CP5  Delivering and defending - health, social care, supportCP1  Open Lewisham

CP2  Tackling the Housing Crisis

Corporate Priorities

P
age 79



Healthier Communities Select Committee work programme 2021/22 

Item Type Priority Delivery 21-Jun 08-Sep 02-Nov 12-Jan 01-Mar

Confirmation of Chair and Vice Chair Constitutional req CP5 June

Work programme 2021-22 Constitutional req CP5 June

Lewisham system recovery Standard item CP5 June/Jan

Migrant charging update Standard item CP5 Sept

Adult social care review update Standard item CP5 Sept/Jan

Lewisham Adult Safeguarding Board (LASB) 

annual report
Standard item CP5 Nov

The Birmingham and Lewisham African & 

Caribbean Health Inequalities Review (BLACHIR)
Standard item CP5 Nov

Budget cuts proposals Standard item CP5 Jan

Leisure centres performance management Standard item CP5 March

Care homes and market stability Standard item CP5 March

Information reports, briefings and visits Type Priority Delivery 

Lewisham Adult Safeguarding Board (LASB) 

annual report

Performance 

monitoring 
CP5 Nov

Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust (LGT) quality 

account

Performance 

monitoring 
CP5 tbc

South London and Maudsley NHS Trust (SLaM) 

quality account

Performance 

monitoring 
CP5 tbc

Adult Learning Lewisham (ALL) annual report
Performance 

monitoring 
CP5 July

Health and care bill Briefing CP5 Sept

Migrant charging update Standard item CP5 Sept

Pathology changes - impact on GP services
Performance 

monitoring 
CP5 Tbc

Annual public health report
Performance 

monitoring 
CP5 July `

Item completed

Item on-going

Proposed timeframe 

P
age 80



Housing Select Committee work programme 2021/22

Item Type Priority Delivery 07-Jun 16-Sep 18-Nov 20-Jan 10-Mar

Confirmation of Chair and Vice Chair Constitutional req CP2 June

Allocations policy Standard item CP2 June

Work programme 2021-22 Constitutional req CP2 June

Lewisham Homes annual report and business 

plan

Performance 

monitoring 
CP2 Sept

Resident engagement in housing development - 

response to in-depth review
M&C response CP2 Sept

Rent and service charge increases Standard item CP2 Nov

Location Priority Policy & Procurement Strategy Standard item CP2 Nov

Budget cuts proposals Standard item CP2 Jan

Lewisham Homes repairs Standard item CP2 Jan

Borough-wide licensing Standard item CP2 Jan

Progress update on housing and homelessness 

strategies
Standard item CP2 March

Shared ownership Standard item CP2 March

Information reports, briefings and visits Type Priority Delivery 

Regenter B3 annual report and business plan
Performance 

monitoring 
CP2 July

Rent and service charge increases
Performance 

monitoring 
CP2 Jan

Additional licensing update
Performance 

monitoring 
CP2 Sept

Empty homes strategy Standard item CP2 tbc

New homes programme update
Performance 

monitoring 
CP2 Sept

Item completed

Item on-going

Proposed timeframe 

P
age 81



Item Type of item
Corporate 

priority
07-Jul-21 23-Sep-21 01-Dec-21 27-Jan-22 17-Mar-22

Draft contract management framework Policy development All

Medium term finanical strategy Standard item All

Financial results 2020-21 Performance monitoring All

Children's social care Performance monitoring All, CP3

Adult social care review Performance monitoring All, CP5

Treasury management Performance monitoring All Mid-year review Draft 22-23 strategy

Budget cuts Performance monitoring All

Capital programme review Performance monitoring All

Council budget 2022-23 Policy development All

Audit Panel update Performance monitoring All

Information items

Annual complaints report Information All

Financial forecasts 2021-22 Information All

Reserves update Information All

Asset strategy update Information All

Income generation and commercialisation update Information All

Public Accounts Select Committee Work Programme 2021-22

P
age 82



Safer Stronger Communities Select Committee 2021/22

Work Item Type of review

Strategic 

Priority

Delivery 

deadline 16-Jun 21-Sep 04-Nov 13-Jan 03-Mar

Budget Standard Item CP1-CP7 Sep-20

Confirmation of Chair and Vice-Chair
Constitutional 

requirement
CP1 Jun-21

Select Committee Work Programme 2021/22
Constitutional 

requirement
CP1 and CP7 Jun-21

Violence Against Women and Girls Strategy Pre-decision CP1 and CP7 Nov-21

Main Grants Programme Pre-decision All Jan-21
recommendations for 

funding

Borough of Culture
Performance 

monitoring
CP1 Jun-21

Libraries
Performance 

monitoring
CP1 Sep-21 Deferred TBC

Local Assemblies Review and future  inc. NCIL
Performance 

monitoring
CP1 Sep-21

Equalies Review - 6- month update
Performance 

monitoring
All Nov-21

Safe Lewisham Plan
Performance 

monitoring
CP7 Jan-21

Update from local Police and Fire
performance 

monitoring
CP7 Jan-21

Prevent TBC
performance 

monitoring
CP7 Jan-21

HR Update
performance 

monitoring
TBC Mar-21

Information Reports, briefings and minutes

Equalities Data Digest
Performance 

monitoring
CP1 + CP7 on-going

Public Health Approach to Violence Reduction
Performance 

monitoring
CP7 on-going

Item completed

Item on-going

Proposed timeframe  

P
age 83



Item Type
Corporate 

priority
30-Jun-21 15-Sep-21 23-Nov-21 18-Jan-21 Tbd

Catford Town Centre Regeneration: masterplan framework Performance monitoring All

Emissions based short stay parking and motorcycle charging Policy development CP6

Waste strategy Policy development CP6

A21 Strategy Policy development CP6

Environmental operations review (including mechanisation proposal) Standard item CP6

Implementation of the transport strategy: walking, cycling strategy and healthy neighbourhoods Policy development CP6

Budget cuts Standard item All

Local plan consultation update (regulation 19 approval) Performance monitoring CP6

Statement of community involvement Policy development All

Climate Emergency action plan Performance monitoring All

Information items

Annual parking report Information CP6

Biodiversity action plan update Information CP6

Small sites supplementary planning document review/consultation outcomes Information All

Flood risk management Information CP6

Parks and open spaces strategy update Information CP6

Major planning developments update (incl Bakerloo line) Information CP6

Air quality action plan update Information CP6

Economic recovery on the high street Information CP4

Borough of culture creative legacy Information All

Corporate priority (2) - tackling the housing crisis - 'everyone has a decent home that is secure and 

affordable'.

Corporate priority (4) -  building an inclusive local economy - 'everyone can access high-quality job 

opportunities, with decent pay and security in our thriving and inclusive local economy.

Corporate priority (6) - making Lewisham greener - 'everyone enjoys our green spaces, and benefits 

from a healthy environment as we work to protect and improve our local environment'.

Sustainable Development Select Committee work plan 2021-22

P
age 84



1 CP 1

2 CP 2

3 CP 3

4 CP 4

5 CP 5

6 CP 6

7 CP 7

Delivering and defending: health, social care and support

Making Lewisham greener

Building Safer Communities

Corporate Priorities

Priority

Open Lewisham

Tackling the Housing Crisis

Giving Children and young people the best start in life.

Building an inclusive local economy

Page 85



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\6\0\0\ai00031006\$gstwtvve.doc 

 

Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel 

 
 

 
Recommendation 

 
1. It is recommended that under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 

the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business 
on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined 
in paragraphs 3, 4 and 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Act, as amended by the 
Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Access to Information) (Amendments) 
(England) Regulations 2006:- 

 
2. Decisions made by the Mayor and Cabinet on 3 November 2021: 

 
i. Neighbourhood Community Infrastructure Levy (NCIL) – Boroughwide 

recommendations for funding 
ii. Buyback programme 
iii. Supported Accommodation & Floating Support Services – Permission to Award 
iv. Award of Contract Drug and Alcohol Services (Core Contract) 
v. Catford Regeneration Programme – Approval to Tender works to refurbish the 

former Catford Constitutional Club 
vi. Procurement of a replacement Housing Management System and 

implementation of a Customer Relationship Management System   
vii. Consultation Results and Feedback on Proposed New Parking Arrangements 

on Housing Estate Land 
 

Outline and recommendations 

Members are asked to note items that will be considered in closed session 

Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 

Date: 16 November 2021 
Key decision: No  
Class: Part 1  
Ward(s) affected: Various 

Contributors: Chief Executive / Head Committee 

Page 86

Agenda Item 6



Document is Restricted

Page 87

Agenda Item 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 28/09/2021 Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel
	Minutes

	Minutes - 12 October 2021

	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Key Decision Plan
	Item 3b - Key Decision Plan

	4 Open Session - Decision by Mayor and Cabinet on 3 November 2021
	AdultsCoreSubstanceMisuseContractAwardMCNovember32021FINALPART1
	SharedOwnershipApprovaltoMarketSellandManage
	SharedOwnershipApprovaltoMarketSellandManageAppendix1EqualitiesImpactAssessment

	5 Scrutiny Update Report
	Item 5b - Appendix A - Select committee work programmes 2021-22 (5)

	6 Exclusion of the Press & Public
	7 Closed Session - Decision by Mayor and Cabinet on 3 November 2021

